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VISION

We will be ranked among
the leading housing finance
institutions in the world,
renowned for customer service
and contribution to national
development.

MISSION

Improving the quality of life
of Jamaicans by
facilitating home

ownership and community

development,
particularly among low
income persons.



CORW_ LUES

INNOVATION
To constantly challenge ourselves to identify
new
approaches to meet the needs of our
customers,
stakeholders and the organization.

EXCELLENCE
To apply exceptional knowledge,
understanding and creative
thinking in our analyses, processes and
decision-making.

PROFESSIONALISM
To adhere to a set of principles comprising
both formally agreed-upon codes of conduct
and informal expectations of colleagues,
customers and society.

ACCOUNTABILITY
To meet our commitments and accept
responsibility for our actions and decisions.

CARING
To treat all persons fairly and with
respect.

INTEGRITY
To employ the highest ethical standards,
demonstrating honesty, sincerity and fair-
ness in every action or decision.
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June 23, 2005

The Most Hon. P.J. Patterson,ON,PC,QC,MP
Prime Minister

Jamaica House

Hope Road

Kingston 6

Dear Prime Minister,

In accordance with Section 3 First Schedule (no.6) of the National Housing
Trust Act 1979, | transmit herewith the Trust’s report for year ended
March 31, 2005, and a copy of the Statement of the Trust’s Accounts at
March 31,2005, duly certified by the Auditors.

I am
Yours respectfully,

el

Kingsley Thomas
Chairman



seven year statistical summary

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Total Assets 72,773,699 64,325,995 54,405,229 46,174,088 38,758,201 32,413,635 26,207,052
Finance for Housing Construction 1,834,251 2,105,594 1,820,770 1,534,622 1,889,852 1,759,289 2,740,154
Loans to Beneficiaries 44,126,523 40,683,473 36,061,548 32,075,191 26,883,649 22,857,396 17,516,317
Refundable Contributions 25,103,757 21,834,847 18,480,715 15,774,631 12,552,555 10,501,730 8,542,499
Accumulated Fund
Non-Refundable Contributions 24,886,011 21,377,650 18,345,658 16,118,228 13,629,486 11,400,443 9,416,777
Surplus on Income & Expenditure
Account 18,668,351 16,890,418 14,484,883 12,086,260 10,038,436 8,200,718 6,345,845
Results From Operations
Total Operating Income 7,081,626 7,019,101 4,920,487 4,247,692 3,436,459 3,368,360 2,564,212
Operating Expenditure 2,147,312 1,756,312 1,488,443 1,218,175 980,055 856,781 739,643
Net Surplus 1,833,432 2,661,999 2,419,622 2,297,824 1,837,718 1,854,873 1,291,948
*Financial Ratios
Average interest on loans % 7.9% 8.2% 7.8% 8.1% 8.2% 9.5% 9.7%
Yield on investments % 21.8% 26.7% 20.6% 16.3% 17.2% 22.7% 22.3%
Efficiency Ratio % 46.0% 37.0% 41.0% 36.0% 35.0% 32.0% 39.0%
Return on Capital % 4.2% 6.9% 7.3% 8.7% 8.4% 10.0% 8.7%
Return on Assets % 2.7% 4.8% 5.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.1% 5.3%
Other Information
Annual Housing Expenditure 5,735,970 5,332,619 5,773,547 5,773,356 4,842,873 5,051,643 4,197,000
Contributions Received 7,060,372 6,034,126 5,461,210 4,935,584 4,334,441 3,945,528 3,711,881
Contributions Refunded 1,230,626 513,355 520,742 446,083 192,082 110,701 91,614
Number of Mortgages Created
since Inception 101,084 94,830 87,878 81,434 74,317 69,413 63,500
Number of Individual Benefits 112,514 106,246 99,294 92,810 85,436 78,74 69,932

Provided since Inception
* restated for 2002,2001
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HAIRMAN & MANAGING
DIRECTOR S MESSAGE

During the financial year 2004/05 the National
Housing Trust designed and implemented policies
which sought to actualize the vision of the organ-
ization, i.e. "to be ranked among the leading
housing finance institutions in the world,
renowned for customer service and contribution
to national development". This was evidenced in
the organisation's interaction with and contribu-
tion to its various stakeholders, in particular its con-

. tributors, communities and the nation. The com-
Kingsley Thomas

CHAIRMAN

pany built on the commitments outlined in the
strategic plan for the period 2002-2007 which rec-
ognized that the provision of housing solutions is
but one segment of national development. The
strategic objectives for the year, therefore,
addressed not only the physical aspects of com-
munity building but the socio-economic and psy-

chological aspects as well.

To strengthen its ability to provide quality service to its clients and busi-
ness partners, the Trust undertook various capacity building exercises
which included continued development of human resources;
improvement of procedural efficiencies, systems integration and
upgrade, policy refinement and planning concentration. Some of

the more significant achievements over the year include:

. Refund of contributions. For the year under review, the NHT
refunded $1.2 billion to contributors. An increase of 140%

over the previous financial year;

. Housing provision. A total of 6,254 mortgages were provided
to contributors during the year. While, a total of $5.4 billion

was spent on housing construction.

. Social Development. Under the Inner-City Housing Project
(ICHP), construction work continued and/or commenced on
four (4) sites comprising 580 housing units. These were
Denham Town (Little King Street); 88-100 Spanish Town Road;

Trench Town and Monaltrie.



Operational Efficiencies. A special unit was
established at the Titles Office which will reduce
registration time for mortgages from four (4)
weeks to ten (10) days. Through a special
arrangement with the Stamp Office, stamping
of NHT mortgage documents will now be done
internally, leading to reduced processing times.
In terms of technology, the International
Comprehensive Banking System (ICBS) and the
Alliant Branch Teller (ABT) were upgraded
resulting in greater efficiencies in respect of our

core business systems.

Earl Samuels

MANAGING DIRECTOR

Human Resources. For the year under
review, the NHT concentrated its staff
development activities in three main
areas: 1) training in core competencies
2) leadership development and 3) staff

welfare.



INancial Management

At March 31st 2005, total assets of the National
Housing Trust amounted to $72.9 billion. This rep-
resents an increase of $8.6 billion over the total
assets for the previous financial year. Main areas
of growth included:

1) an increase of 16.4% in cash and cash
equivalents, from $4.5 billion to $5.3 bil-
lion over the figure for the 2003/04 finan-
cial year;

2) an 8% increase in loan receivables,
from $40.7 billion to $44.1 billion and
3) a 30% increase in investment securities,
from a reported $13.4 billion at the end
of the 2003/04 financial year to $17.4 bil-

lion at the end of the year under review.

Total revenue increased marginally (1%) from
$7.0 billion to $7.1 bilion. Total expenditure, on
the other-hand, increased by 20% over the figure
for the 2003/04 financial year, moving from $3.5

bilion to $4.3 billion. Growth in expenditure is

substantially explained by the settlement of hurri-
cane insurance claims amounting to $265 million
and contribution to the Office of National
Reconstruction of $400 million, to assist with re-
housing of communities in the aftermath of hurri-
cane lvan. Surplus before tax amounted to $2.8

billion at the end of the year, a reduction of 22%.

The total contribution collected over the period is
$7.1 bilion. This represents an 18% increase over
the previous financial year. Total contributions
comprise $3.5 bilion from employers and $3.6 bil-
lion from employees. The expected ratio of
employer contribution to employee contribution is
3:2. Based on the collections, the ratio is closer to
1:1. This clearly indicates that some employers
continue to withhold the employer portion of con-

tributions due for payment to the NHT.

For the financial year 2004/05 the NHT refunded
$1.2 billion to its contributors. An increase of 140%
over the previous financial year. This is partially a
result of the public awareness programme

launched in the previous year.

HOUSING EXPENDITURE AS A PERCENTAGE
OF CONTRIBUTION COLLECTIONS
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Customer Satisfaction is the central consideration
in the design of our systems, structures and
processes. These are continually reviewed and
improved. During the year, several initiatives were
undertaken. Perhaps, the most important were
the alliances formed with business partners and
improvements to internal systems. Key initiatives

pursued during the year are presented below:

. Establishing a special unit at the Titles
Office. The National Housing Trust (NHT)
creates in excess of 25,000 documents to
register its mortgages annually, which
must be secured by the Legal
Department via the Titles Office of the
National Lands Agency (NLA). NHT mat-
-ters have always been a serious chal-
lenge for the Agency, as we submit the
largest number of documents. The proj-
ect, completed in November 2004 will

result in the following:

1) Reduced registration time to ten
(10) days (down from four (4)
weeks), resulting in improved

customer service.

2) Reduced rejection rate for doc-

uments with typographical errors

3) Direct access to enquire on NHT

documents sent for registration.

. Establishing a composition arrangement
with the Stamp Office. The Legislation
and Regulations Unit of the Office of the
Prime Minister is spearheading an initia-
tive to reduce the bottlenecks in relation
to submission of documents on which ad
valorem duties are payable. The

arrangement prevents these documents

’ PERATIONAL Efficiencies

from having to be sent to the Stamp
Commissioner, before being sent for reg-
istration purposes. The NHT was invited to
participate in this programme along with
other financial institutions. The project,
implemented at the end of the financial

year delivered the following:

1. Execution of a Composition Agreement,
which sets out the terms / conditions of
the operation of the programme.

2. Implementation of a system for affixing
stamp duty paid on the medallion.

3. Implementation of a security system for

the medallion.

The initiative has led to greatly reduced process-
ing times and, of course, increased customer sat-
isfaction.

ScHEME LOANS 2004/2005

Parish No. of Value
Loans (millions)
Kingston 0 0.00
St. Andrew 0 0.00
St. Thomas 9 6.86
Portland 0 0.00
St. Mary 0 0.00
St Ann 9 5,13
Trelawny 2 1.86
St James 446 329.54
Hanover 0 0.00
Westmoreland 0 0.00
St. Elizabeth 0 0.00
Manchester 0 0.00
Clarendon 8 6.91
St. Catherine 8 6.10
TOTAL 482 356.40



The "Tele-banking" facility. Consequent
on the introduction of payment by debit
and credit cards, the NHT introduced tele-
banking in January 2005. The facility
makes it possible for NHT mortgagors, who
are holders of an active Bank of Nova
Scotia Debit Card (Scotia Card) or
National Commercial Bank (Midas) Card,
to make payments from anywhere in the
world and at any time of day or night

using a touch tone telephone.

The Customer Centered Business Model.
The NHT has designed an approach to
customer service, for implementation in
the coming year, which will see all
aspects of our operations (structures,
processes. procedures) being reviewed
and redesigned to meet customer
requirements. The expected outcomes

from this initiative include:

a) a 95 percent reduction in cus-
tomer complaint by September
30, 2006 and

b) a 90 percent customer satisfac-
tion index by March 30,2007.

The International Comprehensive Banking
System (ICBS) and the Alliant Branch Teller
(ABT) upgrade. The systems, which
together form the main operating system
for the organization, were upgraded and
will now provide Users with added flexibili-
ty and ease of use. The result will be faster
processing times and therefore, short-
ened waiting times for our customers.
Greater security and the minimization of
errors will also be significant benefits to

the organization.

Improvement of NHTs Network infrastruc-
ture. The Network was improved to
enhance the simultaneous processing of
several transactions. This will lead to faster
processing in areas such as: posting of
transactions, report generation, general
ledger updates, processing of queries

and User acceptance testing.

ServiceD 1ot 2004/2005

Parish No. of Value
Loans (millions)
Kingston 0 0.00
St. Andrew 0 0.00
St. Thomas 5 6.03
Portland 74 5.16
St. Mary 0 0.00
St Ann 83 34.00
Trelawny 12 3.82
St James 270 98.80
Hanover 0 0.00
Westmoreland 0 0.00
St. Elizabeth 0 0.00
Manchester 0 0.00
Clarendon 579 469.63
St. Catherine 49 17.78
TOTAL 1072 635.22

Aerial View of Green Pond, Phase 11, St. James.



uman resources

In the strategic planning sessions of 2003, manage-
ment acknowledged the need for an all- encom-
passing framework to guide its human resource
practices. A Human Resource Model for the NHT
was the result. This model, developed internally,
combines the results of research into international
best practices with the stated objectives of the
organization. The model identified practical steps
to be taken in three core areas: 1)recruitment
and retention 2) industrial relations and 3) training

and development.

During the year, the NHT concentrated its staff
development activities in the areas of training in
core competencies, leadership development and
staff welfare. The organization thought it timely to
employ a more methodical approach to staff
training. The starting point for this was an assess-
ment of the impact of training on the organization.

This assessment had four (4) broad objectives:

1) To assess the programme offerings, in
terms of content, coverage, delivery, sup-
port systems and related costs and overall

value of training;

2) To assess the impact of training on the

organization's performance;
3) To fulfill the need for management infor-
mation regarding the status and value of

the training being offered by the NHT;

4) To determine possible returns.

This assessment was completed during the year.
The findings from the report pointed to areas for
strengthening. The recommendations will be fur-
ther assessed and an implementation plan devel-

oped for the coming financial year.

Leadership, management and supervisory capabil-
ities are constantly being improved through regular
"management fora" and interactive training ses-
sions. The management fora is an internally driven
programme in which managers with expertise in an
area (example, industrial relations, procurement
procedures etc.) share their insights with other man-
agers, in a formal session held quarterly. Training
sessions in leadership and management are care-

fully selected to ensure usefulness and fit.

Orientation for new employees in progress.



ousing

In 2004/2005, the NHT spent $5.4 billion on hous-

ing construction. This represents an increase of

BUILD ON OWN LAND 2004/2005

Parish No. of Value $70 milion over the amount spent in the previous
Loans (millions) i ) ) )

financial year. Housing completions totalled
Kingston 4 3.82 2,434 and comprise: Build-On-Own-Land (BOL) -
St. Andrew 65 61.97 . .
St. Thomas 31 31.72 1,302 and Scheme solutions (NHT and Interim
Portland 17 15.02 Financed projects) - 1,132. Housing completions
St. Mary 17 16.84 . ) .
St Ann 33 31.97 for the 2004/2005 financial year increased by 93
Trelawny 12 12.26 solutions over 2003/2004. Scheme solutions also
St James 39 37.88 ) .
T 13 13.05 increased by 245. Some of the major schemes
Westmoreland 27 24.85 developed during the year are:
St. Elizabeth 27 26.64
Manchester 54 53.00
Clarendon 33 32.76 . Green Pond Il - 651 solutions
St. Catherine 117 99.85 .
TOTAL 489 461.63 . Appleton (Sugar Workers Housing

Programme) - 133 solutions

. Fair Prospect - 89 solutions

Under the Interim Finance programme, six (6)
schemes were developed: Bushy Park, Eltham,
Aviary and White Water in St. Catherine; and
Highland Meadows and Palmetto Meadows in

Clarendon.

A total of 6,254 mortgages were provided to
contributors for this financial year with mortgages
for Scheme solutions, House Lot and Construction

increasing over the previous year.

Potential Beneficiaries in discussions with NHT representatives at the newly
developed Fair Prospect Housing Scheme, Portland.
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Inner-city Housing Project

The Inner-City Housing Project (ICHP) is one ele-
ment of a holistic plan to improve the living con-
ditions and the quality of life of residents in select-
ed inner city areas. The project has two compo-
nents; 1) construction 2) social development. The
construction component involves the building of
new units and all related social and physical
infrastructure, as well as the refurbishing of exist-
ing housing units. The aim of the programme, as
outlined by the Prime Minister, in his 2003 budget
speech "is to transform inner-city areas into
attractive and sustainable neighbourhoods
through a combination of new housing and the
refurbishment of existing housing stock. The chal-
lenge is to balance the provision of adequate

space with affordability”.

To date, sites under Construction include
Denham Town (Little King Street); 88-100 Spanish
Town road; Trench Town and Monaltrie.

. Denham Town (Little King Street) com-
prises 94 housing units. With a hand-over
date of July 2005, the development was
far advanced at the end of the finan-

cial year.

. 88-100 Spanish Town Road consists of 186
Units. The project will be handed over in
the third quarter of the 2005/06 financial

year.

14

. Trench Town comprises 252 Units.
Construction on this project will also end
in the third quarter of the 2005/06 finan-
cial year.

. Monaltrie, the smallest of the four (4)
developments will have 48 housing units.
Completion is scheduled for the third
quarter of the 2005/06 financial year.

Projects in the design stage include Denham
Town (North); White Wing (10 Olympic Way);
Spanish Town Road; Maxfield Park (Frog City);
Maxfield Park (Tarrant); Majestic Gardens;
Railway Lands and Prison Lands. Acquisition of
lands on which to construct developments con-

tinued throughout the year.

OPEN MARKET 2004/2005

Parish No. of Value
Loans (millions)
Kingston 73 61.28
St. Andrew 601 511.70
St. Thomas i3} 12.24
Portland 5 3.84
St. Mary 14 12.80
St Ann 27 23.18
Trelawny 6 5.02
St James 164 143.54
Hanover 3 8.5
Westmoreland 16 15.34
St. Elizabeth 14 13.82
Manchester 16 15.65
Clarendon 17 14.74
St. Catherine 1176 820.39
TOTAL 2145 1656.69

Road.

Units under construction
at 88-100 Spanish Town



HOME IMPROVEMENT 2004/2005

Parish

Kingston

St. Andrew
St. Thomas
Portland

St. Mary

St Ann
Trelawny

St James
Hanover
Westmoreland
St. Elizabeth
Manchester
Clarendon
St. Catherine
TOTAL

No. of
Loans

WWUITNOOPRANE WE WNN

60
118

Value
(millions)

0.80
11.20
1.23
0.40
1.24
0.35
0.84
1.67
0.00
0.00
0.83
2.09
3.21
24.22
48.08

CONSTRUCTION LOANS 2004/2005

Parish

Kingston

St. Andrew
St. Thomas
Portland

St. Mary

St Ann
Trelawny

St James
Hanover
Westmoreland
St. Elizabeth
Manchester
Clarendon
St. Catherine
TOTAL

HOUSE LOT 2004/2005

Parish

Kingston

St. Andrew
St. Thomas
Portland

St. Mary

St Ann
Trelawny

St James
Hanover
Westmoreland
St. Elizabeth
Manchester
Clarendon
St. Catherine
TOTAL

No. of
Loans

14
50
52
18
26
43
19
61
1
14
19
47
257
244
865

No. of
Loans

30
59
149
21
26
144
14
25
8
11
80
94
127
298
1086

Value
(millions)

9.02
34.67
SoNINE
12.34
19.14
29.60
12.49
39.57

1.038

8.68
14.57
32.39

164.83
159.44
572.88

Value
(millions)

8.54
22.38
54.99

6.70

8.73
54.24

4.68

9.29

2.92

3.45

30.54
36.19
45.42
111.63
399.70
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SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

Since the inception of the project, the NHT recog-
nized that changing attitudes and behaviours, as
well as improving the economic status of the
potential beneficiaries, would be integral to it's
success. The social development programme
addressed these concerns. Highlights during the

year include:

. Over two hundred (200) residents of
Denham Town, Hannah Town, White
Wing and Frog City (an informal settle-
ment in the Maxfield Park area) complet-
ed a variety of skills training programmes.
These courses include leadership and
work orientation, customer service,
cashiering, welding, carpentry, land-
scaping, pest control, food preparation,
cosmetology and remedial education.
Classes were held in centres across the
corporate area. The HEART Trust and the
Jamaica Chamber of Commerce were

the main facilitators of the courses.

. Over 80 persons have become
employed or self-employed as a result of

the ICHP training programmes

. A sports clinic in football and netball was
held for twenty (25) children living in the
communities of Maxfield Park, Denham
Town, Hannah Town, White Wing and
Monaltrie. The training was aimed at
developing positive values and attitudes
in children between the ages of seven (7)

and twelve (12).

. A seven-week training in Parenting/
Community Health & Reprodctive Health
was held for the communities of Denham
Town and Frog City. Youth Opportunities
Unlimited (YOU) facilitated these meeti-

ings.



. Twelve (12) persons were trained in art
and interior design at the Edna Manley

School for the Visual Arts.

. Beneficiaries slated to occupy units in
Denham Town and Monaltrie were

trained in Strata Management.

No. OF LOANS 2004/2005 BY PARISH

Parish

Kingston

St. Andrew
St. Thomas
Portland

St. Mary

St Ann
Trelawny

St James
Hanover
Westmoreland
St. Elizabeth
Manchester
Clarendon
St. Catherine
TOTAL

asset distribution

12%

No. of Value
Loans (millions)
123 83.47
802 641.92
262 148.17
136 43.47
86 58.75
340 178.47
67 40.97
1009 660.29
25 20.15
68 52.33
142 86.40
216 139.31
1029 737.50
1949 1239.40
6254 4130.60

Prospective beneficiaries of the
NHT’s Inner City Housing
Project, being trained in
Leadership and Enployment
Readiness at the Jamaica
Chamber of Commerce.

|| Current Assets

[ ] Long Term Investment
I Housing Investment
B Fixed Assests




TOWARD THE FUTURE Overall, we will have contributed to improving the

quality of life of Jamaicans, by facilitating home
We believe that the future of the NHT will be noth- ownership and community development, particu-
ing short of exciting. We are two years away from larly among low income persons.
achieving the vision, set in 2002 and refined in later
years. When we have successfully completed the
process, the Trust will be a housing finance institu-

tion of excellence. We will have:

. improved customer satisfaction levels
. wholesome inner-city communities

. an effective human resource model
. quality housing products that meet

demand and

. improved internal efficiencies.

TAKEOVER SCHEDULE FOR 2005/2006

PARISH PROJECT UNIT TYPE TOTAL

St. Cathering Bernard Lodge Serviced Lots 474
Studio 1

Bushy Park 2 Bedroom 40

Cherry Gardens 2 Bedroom 34

St. James Green Pond [1 Detached Studio 24
Duplex Studio 91

Westmoreland Water Works Serviced Lots 98

TOTAL 162




PICTORIAL REVIEW

Signing of construction contract for the Inner City Housing
Project (ICHP). (L-R seated) Prime Minister, the Most Hon. P.J
Patterson, Managing Director of ASHTROM, Benny Goldstein,
ASHTROM Chairman, Howard Hamilton, and Managing
Director, NHT, Earl Samuegls. (Standing) Maurice Anderson,
Director, ICHP.
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View of the Inner City Housing Project’s 2 and 3 bedroom development,
Little King Street, Denham Town.
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Senior Project Manager- ICHP,
Heather Pinnock discussing
plans for Trench Town with
members of ASHTROM
Building Systems, (L-R) Donald
Ellis, Rami Hazaz.

(R-L) Devon Sterling and
Desmond Young. At centre,
Donovan Franics of the NHT’s
Communications Department.




HOUSING

NHT’s Newly Designed 2 Bedroom Units. Two of the
15 Units in the Prospect Housing Scheme Portland.




Dr. Vincent George, Senior General
Manager, Corporate Services, NHT,
presenting an award to a graduate of
the Leadership & Employment
Readiness Course.

The Denham Town Drumming Group display
their skills at the NHT’s Inner City Housing
Project cultural arts summer school at the
Denham Town Community Center. The group
was among the over 150 children and young
adults from a number of inner-city communi-
ties who participated in the programme put
on by the NHT to improve the well being of
some of the young residents of the communi-
ties.

Mr. Brian Martin, receiving his award from Mr. Hugh Ried, Senior General

Mr. Earl Samuels, Managing Director, NHT, discussing fea- Manager, Finance & Operations. Mr. Martin is the recipient of a schoolar-
tures of the Inner City Housing Model, with (L-R) Mr. ship to the University College of the Caribbean, awarded for outstanding
Errol Greene, Board member and Patrick Lawrence, Deputy performance during the Leadership & Employment Readiness Course.
Board Chairman. (Center) Mr. Sameer Younis, Chairman of the Inner City Development

Committee of the Jamaica Chamber of Commerce.
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BEST SCHEME COMPETITION

Children from the Angels, Victoria Court and Ebony Vale Schemes, in per-
formance at the finals of the Best Scheme Competition.
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Winners of the National Best Scheme
Competition, Mr. Austin Hyman (4th from
left) representing first place winners Cedar
Grove, Mr. Junior Dunn (3rd from left) repre-
senting second place winners Donmair and
Mr. Edmund Miller (2nd from left) represent-
ing 3rd place winner, Glendale.

Celebrating with the winners are Deputy
Chairman, Patrick Lawrence, Managing
Director Earl Samuels and Hon. Maxine
Henry-Wilson, Minister of Education, Youth
& Culture.

.r/,,___,

BrEa L

VR NV | VIR

<%
h 20 3.-1_'@;3‘?
L F !!L

ne
REEY

_:.-I'i:[,..nu-.- 18TET

CISTelaTs

Donmair, Kingston Glendale, Kingston
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Dr. Vincent George, Senior General
Manager, Corporate Services, pre-
senting to a county level winner in
the Best Scheme Competiton.




The NHT Chorale in performance at the end of year function.

25




e My A

Members of Staff get their “party on” Managing Director Mr. Earl Samuels in light conversation NHT staff members, resplendently

at the NHT’s End of Year function. with former Managing Director, Milverton Reynolds &

. ) attired, smiling for the cameras.
Deputy Chairman , Patrick Lawrence. 9

‘\\'
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STAFF

“TEAM NHT”
at the 2005
Sigma Corporate Run.
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Directors’

The Director's are pleased to present their report and audited statements of Accounts, ended March 31st
2004

. Financial Results

2005 2004
($000) ($000)
Income
Interest on
Loans receivables 3,370,432 3,144,506
Investments 3,344,784 3,320,356
Gains on projects - 141,065
Service charge on loans to beneficiaries 75,573 61,466
Miscellaneous 290,837 351,708
7,081,626 7,019,101
EXPENDITURE
Operating expenses 2,147,312 1,756,312
Bonus on employees' contributions 947,525 865,353
Provision (recovery) on loans receivable 165,904 420,228
Losses on projects 60,862 =
Subsidies - special projects 953,590 440,554
4,275,193 3,482,447
SURPLUS BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND TAXATION 2,806,433 3.536,654
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS 48,325 2,312
SURPLUS BEFORE TAXATION 2,758,108 3,534,342
Taxation 924,676 872,343
NET SURPLUS 1,833,432 2,661,999
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THE BOARD

Hon. Kingsley Thomas,0.J.,Chairman
Earl Samuels, Managing Director
Patrick Lawrence,O.D., J.P., Deputy Chairman
Guila Bernal

Hon. Hopeton Caven,O.J.

Robert Cranston

George Fyffe, O.D., J.P.

Errol Greene, J.P.

Evon Hewitt

Genefa Hibbert

Wayne Jones

Herbert Lewis,O.D., J.P.

Isiaa Madden

Danny Roberts

Travert Spence, J.P.

Dawnett Turner

THE AUDITORS

The auditors, Deloitte& Touche, have indicated their wilingness to continue in office.

THE EMPLOYEES

The Directors thank the management and staff of the Trust for their hard work during
the year under review.
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Deloitte & Touche

[ ] Chartered Accountants
7 West Avenue
Kingston Gardens
P.O. Box 13, Kingston 4
Jamaica, W.I.

Telephone: (876) 922-6825/7
Facsimile: (876) 922-7673
http://www.deloitte.com.jm

42B & 42C Union Street
Montego Bay
Jamaica, W.I.

AUDITORS REPORT

Telephone: (876) 952-4713-4
Facsmile: (876) 979-0246

To the Board of Directors of
NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST

We have audited the accompanying balance shect of the Mational Housing Trst as of March 31, 20605
and the relaied income and expendiiure account and statements of chanpes in acownulated fund and cash flows
for the vear then ended and have received all the information and cxplanations which we considered necessary.
These financial statements are he responsibility of the directors and management. Ouwr responsibility s o
cxpress an opimion on the financial statements hased on our aodie.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require tat we plag asd perform e audil (o olMain reasonable assurance that e financial statements are [bee ol
material misstatoments.  An audit includes cxamining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosuses in e financial statements. It also includes assessing (e accounting principles used and significant
catimates made by dircetors and management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statcments proscntation.
We belisve owr audil provides a reasonable basis [or our opinion.

The Trust bas oot fully established personal accounts for emploved persons who made conteibutions (o
the Trust, sz detailed in Mote 15, to cnable it to issee certificates of contributions made as required by the Act.
The processing of annual returns 15 ongoing, and e Trost is taking steps o complete the processing o bring its
reeonds up o date and ssue the relevant cortificates, although its progress s hampered by employers not
subumitting the refurns requived in o timely manner.

In our opiniog, e financial statements present ficly in all material respects the state of the Trust's
affairs as at March 31, 205 and of the results of its operations, its changes in accumulated fimd and it cash
flovws for the year then ended in accordance with Infemational Financial Reporting Standards. Except for the
matters referred to in the preceding paragraph, proper accounting rocords have been kept and the finangial
slatements ave in agreement therewil,

Without qualifying our opimion, we draw atlention o Note 7 wiich discloses hat cefain investiments
telating primarily to loans granted to hencficianes are not secured, although the Trost i comently pursmng otles
o rexister individoal morigapes,

Delalt { oy

Chartered Accowniants
K imeston, lameica

May 30, 2005

A member firm of

) ] Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Donald S. Reynolds, Carey O. Metz, Audley L. Gordon, Winston G. Robinson, Fagan E. Calvert

Associate: Gihan C. deMel
Consultant: T. Sydney Fernando



NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST
BALANCE SHEET AT MARCH 31, 2005

(Expressed in $'000)
2005 2004
Holes % 3

ASSETS
Ciesh o cash eguivalenis 4 5,532,820 4,581,139
Inlerest and olher receavables 5 2,170,445 1ETOEZL
Invome tuy recovernble 44 933 302 434
Loans receivable 6.7 44,126,523 40,683,473
Iwszatment securitics ] 17,356,219 13,382 236
Inweniorics 9 1,834,251 2105594
Tntangillc asscts I 31,795 34,774
Tivestmend in associale I a5, 046 277073
Retirerment el a5l 2 2001, 900 138,500
Propedy, plant and sguipinent 13 1034 530 B6195]
Total assets 1L ET5 470 Gd J2s s
LIABILITIES AND ACCLUMLULATEL FLNLY
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and acenals 14 T3, 1940 AT1, 140
Employers” contributions refundable - 1038
Tonus payable o employers fi2 3407
Belumduble comtribulivmes 15 25,103,757 21,824,847
Dl luxalion 14 735,745 G71.454%0

26 562 754 23 332 4238
ACCUMULATELD FLND
Mon-refundable cmployers” contributions i) 24 BiG.011 21,377,650
Fair valuc and ather reserves 17 934,261 D0E, 205
Pzril reserve & F20,441 Q11A61
Taoan Tess reservc 19 Qi 1,652 R5d4.7313
Surplus on income amd expendilore accounl 18,668,351 I6.A0.418

46 310,716 40043 567
Totnl linbilitics and accumuluted fund T2 BT 470 G4 325 s

The Moles on pages 40287 Torm an nlezn] part of (he Fusaneil Sioizomens,

The [munciul slalemenls on puges 35-87 were approved and sulhorreed lor ssue by the Board of Direclors
on blay 30, 2005 and are signed on ite behalf by:
o

D ——a et

Kl nq;'-.h::,. "I'hnma.a—t"lﬁn'rnan Farl Samucls — Mamaging THroctor
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NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST
INCOME & EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005
(Expressed in $'000)

TNCOME

Interest on:
- Loans reccivable
- Investments
(Fains on projocts
Service charge on loans o beneficiaries
Misccllancous

EXPENMDITURE
Operating cXpenscs
Bonus on employvess” contributions
Provision om loans reccivable

Losses on projects
Special subsidics and grants

SURPLUS BEFORE EXCEFTIONAL ITEMS
AND TAXATION

EXCEPTIOMNNAL TTEMS
STTRPLIIS BEFORE TAXATION
Taxation

NET SIRPLIIS

MNotes

21

22

23

24

20015

3,370,432
3,344 784

75,573
290,837

1.081.626

2,147,312
047 325
165.904

60,862
053,590

4,275,193

2,506,433
48325
2,758,108
024,676

1,833,432

—try o

The Notes on pages 40-87 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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2004

3,144,506
3,320,356
141,065
61 466
351.708

7,019,101

1,756,312
®635.,353
420,228

440,554

3,482,447

3,516,654

pate |
3,534,342
K72.343

266159949
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NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005
(Expressed in $'000)

CASH FLOWSE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Mt surplus for the year

Adjustments for:
Losses and subsidics on prigects
Provisions on loans receivable
Provisien for bonus on employees” contrbution
Depreciation
Ciain on sale of property, plant and cguipment
Adjustments to property, plant and equipment
Service charges amortised
Intangible assets amortised written oft
Bealised loss on disposal of available-for-sale investments
Retirement benefit asset
Defermed tax adjustments
Interest Income
Foreign exchange adjustment

Increase in operating asscts
Interest and other receivables
Retirement benefit contributions
(Decrease) increase in operating liabilifes
Accounts payable and accruals
Bonus payable to employens
Emplover’s contribution refunded

Cash uscd In operations

Interest received

Tax refund (paid)
Cash provided by oporating activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Intangible assels
Loans reecivable less recoverics
Acquisition of property, plant and equipmeni
Acquisition of Investment sccuritics
Proceeds on encashment ol investmenl securilies
Dicercase (Incrcasc) in myventory (net)
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment
[nvestment in, and advances to associated company

Clush vsed in imvesting aclivilies

38

0035 2004
i b

1,833,432 2,661,999
272,330 135,434
163,904 420,228
047,525 865,353
103,462 69, 7490
(1447 595)

794 .
(75573 (  6LA466)
13,249 £6,194
- 14,478
(1910 {  62.925)
54,766 630,543
( 6,715.216) { 6464 %62)
i 2,093y (___ 69.557)
( 3.392.463) ( 1,775,3%6)
( 95258) ( 37.734)
([ 463000 (0 41.600)
( 167.956) 211,704
(3345 | 258)
(____1.038) (___ 2.444)
( 3,706,360) { 1.,645,71%)
6,510,847 5,980,015
342500 (__213.093)
3146088  _4.121.004
( 10,270) 22,203)
( 3,533,381) { 4,980.687)
( 335.425) 23R (158)
(15,210,628) (17,179,775)
11,263,085 15,350,005
4710 400,170}
4,331 613
(_407.973)y (__277.073)

(_8.225.545)

(7,747, 258)




NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005
(Expressed in $'000)

20H05 20H
Note L] %

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Contributioms from employers 3508 361 3,031 9492

Contributions from cmployces 3,552,011 3,002,134

Retund of emplovee contributions (1.2306826) (513,353

Cash provided by financing activities 5 R20. 746 5520771
THCREASE TN CASH AN CASH EQIITVALENTS T51,180 1. 894717
OPENTNG CASH ANTY CASH FEQUIVALENTS 4 581,139 2 6RZ 0T
Fifect of foreign exchange rale changes 4598 4,343
CLOSTNG CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4 5332 K26 4 581,139

The Notes on pages 40-87 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

| IDENTIFICATION

The National Housing Trust was cstablished in Jamaica in 1976 and beeame a body
corporate under the National lousing Trust Act (the Act) in 1979,

The Tunctions ol the Trost are:
L] To add o and improwve the country”s existing supply ol howsing by -

(1) promoling housing projects 0 such cxtent a3 may ffom tme 0 tme be
approved by the Minister responsible for the T'rust.

{ii)  making loans available to contributors to assist in the purchase, building,
maintenance, repair or improvement of houses; and

{iii}  encouraging and stimulating improved methods of production of houses.

we To enhance the usefulness of the funds of the Trust by promoting greater efficiency
m the housing scetor,

The Trust was originally exempt from income tax, transfer tax and property tax.
however by way ol the Public Enlerpnises {Removal of Tax Concessions) Acl: 2002 daled
December 22, 2003, these exemptions were rescinded with effect from December 23,
2003, Molwithsianding the effective date of December 23, 2003 the Taxpaver Awdil and
Assessment Department has determined that January 1, 2004 is to be used as the effective
date as regards Income Tax and as such the Trust has acceounted for Income Tax from this
date (See Note 23).

The registered office of the T'rust is 4 Park Boulevard, Kingston 5.
2 CONTRIBLTIONS AND BENEFITS

i) The Aci requires cerigin employed persons, their emplovers and sell-emploved
persons to make contributions to the 'l'rst.

(k) The benefits (as defined in the Act) in relation to contributions made by emploved
and sclf-cmployed persons arc:

(i) loans for housing acquisition or improvement;
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NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

2 CONTRIBUTIONS AND BENEFITS (Cont*d)

(b)

(c)

(Cont*d)

{ii}  contribution refunds including bomuses awarded in the eighth year after the
first contribution year and annually thereafter for cach succcssive year in
which contributions were made:

() cominbution  relunds  in the evenl ol death, wmvalidiy  and  other
circumstances prescribed.

Fach vear’s contributions made by employers in respect of the period from
meeption to July 31, 1979 are refundable in the form of refunds twenty-bve years
after the end of the year in which they were made. These amounts have been
substantially repaid subject to the contributor not being in default of any of the
Trusl™s reguiremenis, Coniobubions made by employers in respect ol peniods
beginning on or after August 1, 1979 are not refundable and no bonuses are
pavable on such conirbulions.  These non-relundable contribuiions have been
credited to the accumulated fund.

3 STGNTFICANT ACCOITNTING POLICTES

(a)

(b

Rasis of preparation

The Trust's hinancial stalements [or the year ended March 31, 2005 have been
prepared in accordance and comply in all material respects, with applicable
Inlemational Financial BEeporling Standards (IFRS).

These nancial stalements have been preparcd under the historical cost convention
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale investments.

These lnancial stalements are expressed m Jamaican dollars,

Use ol eshmales

The proparation of [nancial stafements in conlommity with IFRS reguires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
asscts and liabilitics and disclosurc of contingent asscts and liabilitics at the date of

the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenditure
during their reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

4



NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Cont’d)

i)

id)

(e)

Cash and cash cguivalenis

For the purpose of the cash flow statcment. cash and cash cquivalents comprisce
cash in hand, cash at bank and other highly liguid investiments that have an original
manurity of 90 days or less from the date of acquisition and are held to meet cash
reguiremenis rather than lor invesimenl purposes.

Imlerest and olher receivables

These amounts, which are cxpected to be setiled within a vear of inecplion. arc
stated at their nominal values reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
irrceoverable amounts,

Loans receivable and provisions for impairment

Loans are recopnized when funds are advanced/disbursed to beneficiaries. They
arc imitially recorded at cost, which is the cash given to originate the loan,
including any transaction costs, and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the cffective interest rate method.

A provision for impairment is established if there is objective evidence that a loan
s impairesd, A loan is considered impaired when 1 1s 1noarmears lor nimety days and
over and when management determines that it is probable that all amounts due
according (o the origing] contrmclual terms will not be collecled, When o loan has
been identified as impaired, the carrving amount of the loan is reduced by
recording specific provisions for loan losses to its estimated recoverable amount,
which is the present value of expected future cash flows including amounts
recoverable from puarantees and collateral, discounted at the oripinal cffcetive
milerest rale ol the loan.

The provision lor impaimmenl also covers silualions where (here 15 objeclive
evidence that probable losses are present in components of the loan portfolio at the
balance sheel date. These have been cstimated based wpon nstoneal patierns of
losses.

Prudential provisions by management for loan loss reguirements that exceed these
amounts for mortgage loans are reflected in the loan loss reserve. of up to a
maximum ol 3% ol the 1ot morigage loan receivables, ss an appropration of
undistributed surplus.
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NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

a

SILNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont"d)

(ch

(£)

Loans reccivable and provisions for impairment (Cont*d)

Write offs are made when all or part of a loan is deemed uncollectible, and are
charged agpuinsl previeusly esiablished provisions [or loan losses, ERecoveries in
part or in full, of amounts previously written off are credited to loan loss expense in
the ingome and cxpenditure sceount.

Scrvice charge on loans to beneficiarics

A fee of 3% to cover processing and administrative expenses is added to the
purchase pnce when granling new morlgages,  The dillerence belween the lee
income and the related expenses is amortised using the effective yield basis over
(he Tile of the merigagz:.

Investment securities

Investments arc classificd into the following catcgorics: investments held-to-
maturily, and available-lor-sale secunities,

Investments held-lo-maturily are those that the Trust has the expressed inlenlion
and ability to hold to mamrity. They are initially recognized at cost. which
meludes transaction ¢osts, and subseguently carmed at amortized cost less any
impairment loss recognized to reflect imrecoverable amounts. The annuoal
amortization of any discount or promium on the acquisition of a held-to-maturnity
security is aggregated with other investiment income receivable aver the term of the
instrument so that the revenue recognized in each period represents a constant vield
on the mvesimeni,

Available-lfor-sale securilics are those miended w0 be held for an indelmite period
of time and which may be sold in response to needs for liguidity or changes in
micrest rates. forcign exchange rates. or markel pnecs.  They are mutially
recognized at cost, which includes transaction costs, and subseguently re-measured
at fair value based on quoted bid prices or amounts derived from cash flow models.
Unrealized gains and losses ansing [rom changes in [air valee of available-lor-sale
securities are recognized directly in fair value and other reserves included in the
aceumulaied und, When (he securities are disposed of or impaired, ihe related
accumulated unrealized pains or losses included in the accumulated fund are
tramsferred te the income and expenditure account,



NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

3

SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (Coni®d)

(n

(2)

ih)

Invesimeni securiites (Conid)

Secumlics purchased under agreement o resel]l (reverse repurchase agreements) are
treated as collaterised financing transactions. The difference between the purchase
and resale pnice 1s reated as imferest and scerued over the hives of the agreements
using the effective yield method.

A lnancial assel 15 considered mmpaired il s carrving amoun! excesds ils estimaled
recoverable amount and this change is expected to be permanent. The amount of
the impairmeni loss [or assels camied ol amoriised cosi is caleolaled as the
difference between the asset’s carrving amount and the present value of expected
future cash flows discounted at the financial instrument™s onginal elTective interest
rate.

All purchases and sales of investment securities are recognized on a trade-date
basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost comprizes
dircet materials; dircet labour costs and any other costs incumed in bringing the
inventories o their present location and condition.  Net realizable value is the
cstimated sclling price in the ordimary course of business, lcss the cstimated cost of
completion and the estimated cosis necessary (o muke the sale. Any wrile down 1o
net realisable value is recognized as an expense in the period in which the write-
down or loss occurs, Any reversal up o the previous wrle-oll 15 recopniasd o the
income and expenditure account in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Intangible assets

Ixpenditure on research activities is recognized as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from the Trust’s development is
recogniaed only i all the [ollowing comdilions are mel;

- an wlentifiable assel 15 created (such as software and new processes);
- it is probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefit
that will flow to the Trust;

- the development cosl ol The assel can be mensured rehably,



NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont*d)

(k)

(i)

(i)

Inlangible assels (Conil"d)

Internally-generated and purchascd intangible asscts are measurcd at cost and arc
amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful lives.

Where no inlemnally-generaled mlangible assel can be recogmized, development
expenditure is recognized as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

[nvestment in associate

An associate is an enterprise over which the Trust is in a position to exercise
significant influcnce. but not control. through participation in the financial and
aperating policy decisions of the investee.

Imterest in the associate 15 carmed i the balance shest of the Trost ol cost less a
provision for dimimation in value (if any).

Retirament benafit costs

The T'rust participates in a pension scheme which is administered by Trustees and
managed by Lifc of Jamaica Limited. The Scheme's asscts arc scparately held and
it is lunded by employee coninbulions ol 3% ol pensicnable salaries (with the
option of contributing an additional 5%) and emplover contributions as
recommended by independent acluaries,

The cost of providing benefits 15 determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method with independent actuarial valuations being carried out every three years
with interim valuations as required by the Trustees. Actuarial gains and losscs that
exceed 10% of the greater of the present value of the 'I'rust’s obligation and the fair
value of plan assets are amortised over the expected average remaining working
lives ol the participating employees. Past service cost s recogmised immediately w
the extent that the benefits are already vested. and otherwise is amortised on a
siraightl-line basis over (he averuge period uniil the samended benelils become
vested.
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NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

SIGNTFTCANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES {(Coni*d)

)]

ik}

Eeliremen! benelil cosls (Cont'd)

The retirement benefit oblizgation recognized in the bualance sheet represents the
present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized
actuarial gains and losscs and unrccosmniscd past scrvice costs, and as reduced by
the fair value of plan assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to
the unrecognised actuarial losses and past service cost. plus the present value of
availuble refunds amd reductions in [uiere conlributions o (he plan.

Properly, planl and equipmenl

All property, plant and cquipment held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes, are recorded at historical or deemed
cost, loss any subscquent accumulated depreciation and subscquent accumulated
impairmenl losses,

Dezpreciation 1% charged so as oo wrile ofl the cost of assels (olher than land) over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method on the following bases:

Freshold buildings - 4i) years
Partitions - 10 vears
Fumiture and fixtures - 8 years
Heavy equipment - 5 years
Molor vehicles - 4 years
(Mfice equipment - 5 years
Compuler eyuipmenl - 3 vears

Mo depreciation 13 provided on frechold land and artwork,

Propertics in the course of construction for administrative purposcs, or for purposcs
ol yel delermined are camed al cosl, less any recognized imparment loss, Cosl
includes professional fees. Depreciation on these assets (on the same basis as other
properly sssels), commences when the assels are ready [or (heir intended use.
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NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

3 SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont™d)

ik}

{1

(m)

(n)

Property, plant and equipment {Cont’d)

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the
diffcrenee between the sales procceds and the carryving amount of the assct and 1s
recoghized in income.

Accounts payable
These are slated al ther nomnal values,
Bomoywings

Interest bearing loans and overdrafts arc recorded at the proeceds reecived nct of
direct issue costs. Tinance charges are accounted [or on an acerual basis in the
income and expenditure account using the effective interest rate method and are
added o (he carmyving amount of the insirument o the exlent that they are ool
settled in the period in which they arise.

‘Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payvable 15 based on axable surplus [or the yvear, Taxable surplus
differs from the net surplus as reported in the income and expenditure account
beeause 11 exclodes 1lems of ineome or expense hal are axable or dedoctible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Trust™s Lhability for curment tax 15 caleulated wsing tax rates that have been cnacted
at the balance sheet date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont™d)

(m)

(o)

Taxation (Conl™d)

Deferred tax 1 tax expeeted to be pavable or recoverable on differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corrcsponding tax basis uscd in the computation of taxable surplus. and is
accounied lor using the balance sheet habibily method, Delerred tax habihbes are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised 1o (he exienl thai i s probable thal taxable prodits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such assets and
liabilitics arc not recognised if the temporary difference ariscs from the initial
recognition of assets and liahilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit
nor the accounting profit.

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date
and reduvced 1o the extent that 11 s no longer probable that sullicient axable proldil
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates currently enacted, which rates are
cxpected o apply in the period when the lability is settled or the assel realised,
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income and expenditure account, except
when it relates to items charged or credited dircetly to accumulated fund. in which
cuse the delermad 1ax s also charged or crediled in the accumulated Tund.

Dezlerred lax assels and labililies are ellsel when they relale o income axes levied
by the same taxation authority and the Trust intends to settle its current tax assets
and habilitics on o net basis,

Contributions

Contributions are recorded when received as the Directors consider that this is the
most practical method ol dealing with such receipis given the dillicullies in
determining the number of emplovers and their owstanding contributions.
Avcordingly, the Trust does nol sceount [or coniribulions which al vesr end (March
31) have not been collected from employers.
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[}

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont d)

ip)

(a)

(r)

(s)

[*enalties

Section 37(4) of the Act directs the 'I'rust to charge penalties at the rate of 2084 per
annum on contributions not paid over on the duc dates.  These penaltics arc
recorded wholly on the basis of amounts collected. The penalty increases o 40%
once the Trust obtains a judgement in respect of contributions not paid at the duc
ale,

Bomewing cosls

These are recognized in the ineome and cxpenditure account in the penod in which
they are incurred.

Peril reserve

Translers are made Inom the accumulated surplus on the income and expendilure
account to the peril reserve up to the policy deductible limit to settle insurance
claims by morlgage benelicianes, Claims up (o he poliey deductible limil e
charged to expenses when advised.

Financial instruments

Financial instrumenis include coniracis that give nise o0 both Gnancial asseis and
financial liabilities. Financial assets include the Trust’s assets except intangible
assels, properly, plunl and equipment, invesimenl in assoeiale, Inveniores, Neome

tax recoverable and prepayments.

Financial liabilities include the T'rust’s liabilities exeept accruals and deferred
taxation.

The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the respective
aceouniing policies associaled with each ilem.

The: [air values of the Inancial instroments are discossed al Mole 27,
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont™d)

(1)

Impairmoent

At cach balanee sheet date, the Trust reviews the carmving amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets 1o determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amounl ol the assel 1s estimated in order 1o determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
mdividual assel, the Trusl estimates (he recoverable amount of the cash-generaling
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverahle amount is the greater of the net selling price and value in use. In
asscazing valuc in uwsc, the cstimated future cash flows are dizscounted to their
preseni value using a pre-tax discount rale thal rellecls current markel pssessmenis
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than the carmving amount, the carrving amount of the assct (cash-gencrating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an
cxpense immediately, unless the relevant assct 1s carmied at a revalucd amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequenily reverses, the carmyving amouni ol the assel
{cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amounl, bul 0 thal the inerensed cormyving smouni does nol exceed the camying
amount that would have bean determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asscl (cash-generating umt) in prior vears, A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalucd amount. in which casc the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluahion mereasse,
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (Coni*d)

(u)

(w)

(x)

Revenue recognilion

1) Interest meome 13 acerued on the me basts by reference (o the principal
outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable.

i) Surpluses/osses on disposal of all wnits in a housing  project  are
credited/charged against the income and expenditure account in the yvear of
DECUTTENCE,

Lenses

Eental ineome/cxpense under operating leases 1% recopnized Inincoms on i
straight-line hasis over the term of the relevant lease.

Foreign currencies

Transaclions in [oreign curreneies are recorded al the mles ol exchange prevailing
on the dates of those transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and
ligbilitics denominated in foreign currencics are retranslated o Jamaican dollars ai

the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. All exchange gains and losses are
crodited to or charged against income of the vear.

Comparative information

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified and or restated o
conform to changes in the current year.
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4 CARH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

These comprisc:

2003 20H14
5000 £'000
Short-term investments with linancial institutions

maturing wilhin ninely days of original date of

purchasc at interest rates ranging, from 5.1% to

14.1% per annum {2004;6,3% to 18,.53% per annum)

(Mote 4(a)) 35.236.565 4,532 441
Bank balances (Mole 4{h)) a5 480 48 426
ash in hand a8l 272

5,332 826G 4,581,139

EY] These shori-lerm invesimenis include meverse repurchuse agreemenis  (olalling
£5.236,563,000 (2004: 82,961 044.000) which are fully backed by Government of
Jamuica sceuritics, At vear cnd, these invesiments inelude forcign curreney
deposits amounting to US$742,024 (2004: 1S51,996,000).

(k) Bank balances include foreign currency  deposits of USE963 853 (20604
1TSE280.000) at interest rates of 1.3% (2004: 1.5%).

> INTEREST ANDOTHER RECEIVABLES
2005 2014
S 000 000
Interest receivable
- louns receivable LT, 712 824 573
- Investment securities 0,162 28,932
StufT loans 127 863 A8, 348
Prepavmenis l&.654 15,463
leposits for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 34,329 23,185
Oilier la6. 168 o020
2,202,884 1.570,821
Less provision for imecoverable debt 32440 -
2,170,448 LA70.821
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i} LOANS RECETVARBLE

{a)  Loans to beneficiarics scleeted by the Tmust
(Mote ae). (1)

Morlgagse loans

Loans for which mortgage processing is
incomplets (Mote 6 )

Loans through lnancil mstilutions MNote 60h)

l.ovans throwgh joint venture programmie

(Note 6i))
L provisions for impaimment (Mote G(p))

Less: unexpired service charszes (Note 6(g))

(b))  Loans o benelcanes selected by the [ollowing
agencies approved by the Trusi:

Jamaica Teachers” Association Houwsing
Co-operalive Limited (JTATIC):
Repayable in 25 years at 3% - 18% per annum
{Maote G111

Mational [lowsimg Development Corporation (NTTDC)

{Formerly Caribhean Housing Finance Corporation)
Repayahle in 25 vears at 8% per annum {Mote 6))0ii))
Repavable in 13 vears at 8% per annum {Note 6(j)(iii))
Repavable over 10 vears al 4% per annum (Nole &8 i)
Fepayahle in 10 years at 8% per annum {MNote 607)(v))
Repayahle in 15 vears at 1% per annum {More GjHvi))
Repavable at 8% per annunm (Note 60))viiy)

Jusinl Ninaneing morleace prozcamme (Mode 600 vii)

Special loans through joint financing — Hurricane [van
(Note 6(jHix))

Oither institutions

Balance carried forward

53

2005 2004
000 000
37,171,588 33,391,078

1,625,006 1,840,868
1,301,002 1,023,744
27613 143,342
40,125,391 36399072
27,241 329,230
39,698,150 36,069,833
979,123 100,533
IXTIG02T 35,061,300
(5,196 44,158
730,471 TI%, 368
887,821 967,448
| 20,286 125,826
789,941 778,225
¥3,300 4,680
100,883 94,588
1.199.254 | 39,460
102,411 =
91,484 93,607
4,171,049 3066660
42890076  38.127.960
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& LOANS RECETVARLE {(Coni*d)
2005 2002
£700H) F700H)
Balance brought forward 42890070 38.127.960
(e} Loan fnancing o developers (Note 6(ky) GhaE, 193 BRI
lcss: provision for impairment {Mote 6(plh 35,301 287005
622 832 486,393
[y Chher
Jamaica Teachers” Association Lowsing Co-operative
Limited (JTATC ) (Nt 6(17) - Z44.414
University of the West Incios (Mote 6(m)) 305 430 okl KRS
Liniversity Hospital of the West Indics (Mate G(n)) IR S
Drevelopment Bank of Jamaica (MNote 601 70678 1189 821
613,615 2,069,124
Total 44,126,503 40,683,473

()

(0

iz

(b}

Ellective April 1, 2002 the rale of inleres) poyable by o beneliciary selecled by the
‘Trust on a loan varies from 2% to Y% depending on the income of the beneficiary.
The loans weether with interest thereon are repayvable in monthly instalments over
periods ranging up to a maximum of 30 years.

Morlgage  loans ol B37 1715880040 [(2(HM: $I3 3 0TRO000 inchade  Ioans
totalling $1.525.827.000 (2004: $£1 860 386.000) in certain schemes for which
parenl hilles exisl or have been surmendened (o The Begisirar of Tiiles in onder for the
splinter titles to be prepared. The Trust is taking steps to ensure that all splinter
tles are received [or such schemes,

The loans for which mortgage processing 13 ineomplete relate w housing schemes
developed by the public sector, for which land titles are not available., ‘1iiles are
required for cach lot of land i the schemes in order to register the names of the
beneliciaries and (he morlgages aken by the Trust,

Loans through financial institutions

These are morlgage credil cerlificales gramted o beneliciaries who are in s posilion
to obtain additional funds from financial instiotions and other organisations.
Under this programme the value of 8 morigage credit cerlificate should nol exceed
the ceiling lor the respective benelit type and the funds are advanced o the
participating institutions for which the Trust is issued promissory notes, and in the
cuse ol buikling socielies, share cerlilicales,
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6

LOANS RECEIVARLE {(Cont*d)

(1)

()

Loans through Joint Venlure programme

These are loans granted to beneficiaries who are employees and who are in a
position to oblam addilional funds from their cmplovers (o ¢nable them (o purchase
housing units. Under this programme the Trust and the participating employer will
provide financing on an cqual basis cquivalent to nincty perecnt (90%) of the sale
price ol the umls with the employee paying a deposil ol 10% (See Nole 7.1(a)).

Loans (o benelicianes selecied by agencics approved by the Trusi

(1)

(ii)

{111}

Thiz loan to Jamaica Teachers” Association Housing Co-operative Limited
(JTALC) in previous years was secured by the assignment to the ‘T'rast of
mortgages n the name of JTAHC and the title decds to the relovant
properties were deposited with the Trust. The loans are amortised over a
period of 25 years with interest rates ranging from 3% to 18% per annum.

During 2004 the FIANC mortgage portfolio was transferred to the Trost in
settlement of amounts owed by the JTTAHC in respect of loans granted o
the TTALIC under the Trust™s Combined Mortgage and Build on (hwn Land
(BOLY programmes.  The formal agreement was signed between the partics
on April 10, 2(6. 'T'he T'rust has registered its interest on the various titles.

This loan is repayable in quarterly instalments over a 25 year period
commencing January 1, 2001, Interest is chargeable at 8% per annum and
is payable in quarterly instalments from Jamuary 1, 1997 The loan is
seeured by the transfer of mortgages by WHDC to the Trust.

The Trust entered into an apreement in 2001 to make the sum of 1.1 billion
available for the purpose of providing shelter solutions for beneficiaries
under the WHDC - Operation Pride portfolio. The loan is for a period of
15 years commencing November 2001, and is repayable, with interest, in
mstallments of $8.695,856 per month,  Interest is charged at 8% per annum.
T'he loan is secured by:

- a letter of undertaking from the Ministry of Finance & Planning in
respect of 3250 million given to sccurc the advance until NHDC
satisfied conditions  precedent to loan  dishursement.  These
conditions have subscquently been satisficd.

- transfer of mortgages in respect of the Greater Portmore portfolio.

- duplicate ccrtificates of title in respect of the Greater Portmore
portfolio retained by the T'rust.
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G

LOANS RECEIVABLE (Cont’d)

)

Loans o benelicianes selecied by agencies approved by the Trust (Coni™d)

(iv)

(¥

An amount of 5180 million was advanced to NHDC in October 2001, for the
purpose of providing shelter solutions for persons who fall within the social
housing scgment of the housing market and who reside in scveral depressed
commuanities in Jamaica.

The principal loan is repayable over 10 years in 1200 egual installments al an
interest rate of 4%, per annum.

This loan is secured by a letter of undertaking from the Ministry of Finance
and Planning, which has undertaken (o0 repay the full amount of principal plus
interest if the NI is unable to do a0,

The T'rust entered into an agreement in 2002 to make the sum of SR million
available for the purpose of providing shelter solutions for beneficiaries under
the NHDC - Operation Pride portlolio, The loan commenced Seplember 2002
and the principal is repayable in 120 equal instalments commencing September
2003. The inlerest is repayvable monthly in ammeurs on the [irst business day ol
each calendar month commencing COctober 1, 2002, Interest is charged at 8%
por annum or such other rate as the Trust may om fime (0 (ime notly the
M,

The loan 15 secured by:

- A letler o vnderiaking [rom the Minisiry of Finsnee snd Planning,
which has undertaken to repay the full amount of principal plus interest
if the NHDC 15 unable to do so.

- Transfers of mortgages in respect of the CGireater Portmore and
mortgage over property at Barrett Hall Estate.

- Duplicate Certificates of titles in respect of the Greater Portmore
portfolio and Barrett Hall Estate retained by the Trust.
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B

LOANS TO RECEIVABLE (Coni*d)

)

I.oans to heneficiaries selected by agencies approved by the 'rast (Cont’d)

(vi)

(vii)

{viir)

The loan is Tor a sum ol $88,711.063 lor the purpose of co-linancing 279
mortgages in the Greater Portmore Project. The loan is for a period of 13 years
and the principal s repayable in 180 equal inslalments, Inlerest 15 repayable
monthly in arrears on the first business day in each ecalendar month
commencing August 2002, Interest is charged at 11% per annum or such other
rate as the Trust may from time to time notify the NIHDC. The loan agreement
was finalized on April 17, 2004,

The loan is sceured by mortzaee over land at Barrett Hall Estates registered at
Volume 1308 Folio 438,

Thie Trust enlerad inlo an agreement (o make the sum ol $120 miallion available
on a revolving basis for the purpose of providing shelter solutions for
benelivianes vnder (he NHDC - Operation Pode portlodie. Inferest 15 charged
at K% per annm.

The revolving loan is secured by deposit of the splinter titles in respect of the
various projects to be retained by the Trust to cover the loan amount together
wilh an excess equivalent 1o 15% ol the loan amount,

Im addition, il is the inlention of the Trust e have the Minsiry ol Waler &
Housing {(MOWH), acting on behalf of NHIC, assign its rights under the
varous land sale agroements as (he land 15 owned by the MOWH.

Joint financing mortease programme

The Trust entered into an agreement to invest funds with Victoria Mutual
Building Socicly (VMBS) and Jumaicn National Building Sociely (JNES)
through the wse of an imprest account, in the name of the Trust for the sole
purpose of onlending [umds w0 gualilied conimbuiors of the Trust al the rates of
interest applicable based on the Trust’s loan policy. The purpose of the
apreemenl is (o assist the coniibolor in owning 4 home which shall be
mortgaged to the above financial institution as security for the funds onlent.

Where the imprest account is diminished to 20% of the initial deposit, the
Trust is obligated (o replenish the sccount W either is ongingl valug or (o oan
amount as agreed hetween the partners.

Interest earned on the imprest account is capitalized and credited to the
aecounl every six months (March and Seplember),
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&

LOANS RECEIVARLE (Coni*d)

(0

Loans to heneficiaries selected by agencies approved by the 'I'mst (Cont’d)

(viii)

(ix)

loint financing mortgage programme (Cont’d)

Quarlerly pyyvments are remilled o the Trwst in respect of cach loan bene il
disbursed in accordance with the amortization schedule applicable for the
relevanl Ioan (wilh nlerest in accordance with the TrusCs loan pelicy less
the percentage spread for VMBS and INBS as apreed between the parties).

These payments are due on the 17 day of April, July, October and January
of ench viar,

Further, VMBS and JNBS are liable o (he Trugl lor the [ull smount of (he
guarterly obligation irrespective of whether the amounts have heen
recovered or collecied Irom the relevanl benelicianes (hrough the morlgage
payment.

The obligations of the financial institution are secured by:

- deposit centificate for the imprest account (where applicable)
- power 0 gllomey 1o assign and (ransler the morlgaged properlics
- assignment of all rights, title and interest in the securities.

During the year the Trust entered into an agreement with participating
mslilutions o provide [unds o sssisl persons who sullered domage o
property due to Hurricane Ivan. This will involve the utilization of an
immprest mechamism wherehy a Ooal 15 agreed on snd reimbursed upon
reaching a percentage of approximately 20% of the original float.

The participating institutions include:

- Jamaica National Building Society
- WVigloria Mulual Bulding Sociely
- First Caribbean Building Society

- Seoliy Jumuaien Bullding Sociely

Imleres) 15 charged al 5% W the Parlivipaling Instilution [or onlending al 7%
to qualified borrowers and is computed from the first disbursement to the
parlicipaling mstilelions, The sum ol all disbursemenis and mleres( aceroed
to March 31, 2005 (or an earlier date as agreed with the participating
mslilution) will be combined (o [orm the loan, repavable over 10 vears on g
guarterly hasis commencing June 2005,
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0o LOANS BECEIVABLE (Coent'd)

()

(k)

{n

{m}

Lasns 1o beneliciaries selected by agencics approved by the Trust (Cont™d)
(x)  (Cont™d)
The obligations of the participating institutions are sceurcd by:
- deposit eertificate for the imprest account (where applicable)
- power of attorney to assign and transler the morlgaged properties
- assignment of all nghts, title and interest in the sccurtics.

Loan financing to developers

This mepresenls (he wial smounl of Onancing provided o public and privale
developers. inclusive of interest charged during the construction period at rates
ranging from 3% (o 12% per annum.,  (See Note 7.1,

Jamaica Teachers” Asseciation Housing Cooperative Limited (JTAHC)

The loan was fully settled during the vear with the issue to the Trost on April 1. 2004
of Local Femstered Stocks and property.

Advances 1o the Universily ol the Wesl Indies (LTWT)

This losn commenced in March 2003 lor the constrection ol student housing, This
eraduated |oan is for a period of 25 years at an interest rate of 8% per annum. The
repayvment will inercease by 3% per annum lor the Orst nine vears, therealter 10 wall be
hased on a straight-ling method. The security Tor the advance is:

i) A lefter of underaking lrom the Minisicy of Finance and Planning, which has
undertaken to repay the full amount of principal plus interest if UUWI is
bl t dio so,

(i} Assipnment of 8 hank account vsed containing foes paid for accommodation
by the students in respect of the buildings constructed.
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o]

LOANS RECETVABLE (Coni*d)

in)

(o)

(P

University |lospital of the West Indies

‘This represents interim financing of 330 million towards the construction of an
mtensive care unit. The losn. which 15 unsccourcd. is for a period of cighteen
momths amd 15 repayable in six equal installments commencing May 2004, Interest
is charged at a rate of 10% per annum.

Development Bank of Jamaica (DBJ)

The Trust entered into a short-term interim financing facility in respect of works
under the road rchabilitation and maintenance programme.  The loan was for a
maximum pericd of three months commencing April 2003 and was repayahle with
interest before or on the due date. The facility was extended to mature in two equal
tramches in May and November 2004, The principal balance was seltled in
December 2004. The balance remaining relates to outstanding interest at year end.
Inlerest was charged al o mole of 20% per anoum vp o December 31, 2003,
subsequent to which the rate was amended to 18% per annum.

The loan is secured by a letter of undertaking from the Ministry of Finance and
Planning, which has given its irevocable and uneonditional undertaking to settle
all obligations i DA s unable e do s,

The outstanding amounts were repald subsoguent 0 vear end.

The movement in the loans reccivable provision i3 as tollows:

2015 211
MMorteage Development

Losauris Fimamcing Tutal Tolal

S0 M) £5000 0
Bulance, April | 320 230 287,605 66,544 2149049

Increase in provision

for the year 108, |48 51,756 | 65504 420,228
Write off during the vear (10,1446) - 10,046y (18,293)
Rulance, March 31 427,241 345,361 TT2L002 ol i, 4
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f LidANS RECEIVABLE (Cont*d)
q) Unexpired service charges on loun (o benelciaries:

This comprises:

2005 20414
7000 £ 000
Balance, April | I.0ME,5333 a0l 16
Additions during the year 4b, 183 TO_RKS
Amortisation 13573 D1, AGH)
Balamnce, March 31 97 123 LODE 535
T STATUS OF SECURITIES FOR FINANCING FOR DEVELOPERS ANIV L{ANS
TO BENEFICLARIES
N The Trust does not hold title deeds as security in respect of the following
mvestments:
2003 2004
£ 000 ]
(a) Loans through joint venfure
mortgagee programme {MNote 7.2) 27.615 143 383
(b} Oiher loans (MNote 7.3)
Mortgame loans to heneficiaries 3150923 3,701,254
Finance for housing construction projocts 327,247 243,350
Sub-total JATE 170 3.544 B804
Toral 3,005, THS 4088, 186
o The loans through joint venture programmes stated in Note 7.1{a) are supported by

promizsory notes, and in the case of building socictics, share certificates. It is the
Trust™s intention 1o record pari passu morigages on the titles in the name of the

Trust in respect of all future loans under these programmes.
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7

ETATUS OF SECURITIES FOR FINANCING FOR DEVELOPERS AND LOANS
T BENEFICIARIES (Cont’d)

3

It has been an established policy of the Trust to carry out housing projects on lands
owned by the Government of Jamaica or its approved agencies without first
regislering morlgages on the land on which the houses are constructed.  This has
heen done to minimise delays and to keep the cost of a housing unit to 2 minimum.
In thix respecl oblaming land (Gles, sub-division plans and splinter iles lakes place
during construction and after the housing projects are completed and houses
handed over to benchiciancs, While this results in certain construction lnance and
morigage loans not being secured in the interim, the directors do not consider the
lack of sceurity for finances provided under progranmumes described in Wote 7.10h)
will have a malerial impact on these linancial stalements.

A provision [or morlgage losses of $427,241,000 (2004:5329,239,000) a3 rellected
in Mote 6, as well as an additional appropriation of surplus on the income and
expenditure account of 3901652000 (20043854, 733.000) has been made to a lean
loss reserve, to cover any losses that may arise from the loans referred to in Note
7.1 above and other mortgrage loans.

Additionally, provisions of $343,361,000 (2004:3287.605.000) have been made in
respect of loan [inancing o developers,

INVESTMENT SECTIRITTES

These consist of the following:

20005 200

5000 B )
Held-to-maturity securitics (at amortised cost) Mote 8{a) 16,930,123 13,135,201
Available-for-sale securitics (at fair valug) Mote Blc) AL, 246,975

17356219  13,382236
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i INVESTMENT SECTTRITTES (Comnt*d)

(a)

Ield-to-maturity securities

Mominal
Valuc
000
Trewsury bills maturing wilhin twelve
months of vear end 486,207

Deposits with financial institutions at
mleresl rales ranging from 6.25% -1 7.8%
(2004 6.5% - 53.35%) per annum
maturing within 12 months of year cnd
Mote 8{b)

Mational Road Operating & Construction Conpany Limited
(MNROCC) Infrastructure 4.5% (plus adjusiment for
infMation component) Converlible Tamaican Dollar
denominated Bonds matring in 2082, The T'most has the
option to convert bonds to MROCC shares at redemption

Ciovernment of lamaica Indexcd Bond U SH6, 9459, 300 at
imterest rate of 12% per annum maturing 20042005

Covermment of Jamaica Indexed Bond USH6.640.202
(2004 TSE2. 2420000 al mierest rales of 900% - [3.95%
(20021 1.25% - 11.75%) por annum maturing 2006/2007

Ciovernment of Jamaica Bond at interest rate of 16.28%
per amnum matucing 20072008

Ciovernment of Tamuica Bond sl imterest rate of 14.25%
[or annum maturing 2082000

Ciovernment of Jamaica Debenture at interest rate of
[4.5% - 36.25% maturing 20042005

Government of Jamaica 17% < 16.5% (2004:25% < 33.5%)
[Jehenture maturing 20057 2006

Government of Jamaica 15.75% - 16.5% (2004: [ .625% -
24,625%) Debenture maturing 200002007

et

63

25 2
£'000 000
451,976 263,363
5,414,016 2,859,022
91,300 991,300
442 448
IR, 225 116,291
300,000 .
20N -
= 1,142,131
698,750 337287
3,270,443 1,213,350
11,735,710 7,367,192



NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

8

INVESTMENT SECURITIES {(Cont*d)

(&)

Held-to-maturily securities (Conl™d)

bt

Government of Jamaca/Dehring, Bunting & Golding
certificate of participation at a ratc of interest based on
the weighted average vield on the 6 month treasuey bill,
payable semi- anmually al March | and Seplembser |
maturing 20002000, The interest rate at year end was
17, 79% (2004217, 789%:) por annum,

Local registercd stock - at cost
Yariable 20042005
Variable 2005/2006
Variahle 2006/2007
Yariable 20072008
Wariahle 20082004
Wariable 20092010
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Mominal valug
1000

1,801,004
1,244,647
400,000
237310
.01 1,000

2005 2004
£000 57000
11,735.710 7.367.192

500,434 591,946
12.236.144 7.959.13%
. 2,376,156
1.801.000 1,699,967
1,244 647 =
400,000 100,000
237,510 -
[.O10.822 1000000
4.693.979 5176123

16,930,123 13135261



NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

B INVESTMENT SECTURITIES (Cont"d)
(b Deposits with financial instinotions

These deposits include reverse repurchase agreements total ling $5,390,61:5,000 {2004
53,280,391 ,000) which arc fully backed by (rovermment of Jamaica scouritics. At yoar
cnid these deposits inclede forcign currency deposits of approximately LSS 907 000
(2004: LISS962, (N0} at mtctest rates of §.25% - 7.35% per annom (2004 6.5% — 944).

(3] Availuble-for-sule secunties
2005 2004
&1000 £l
Lafe ol Jammnica Lieniled  Universal
Investonenl policy (Mole By B5.2E1 T28T72
Torgy Ronads (Mote 8(z)) 185,99 173,777
Chsoled equily investments (Mote BT 54 824 -
TInunted equity invcstmcnts (af cost) - 326
420000 30000
(d) Lifz of Jamaica Limited — Universal Lvestor Molicy
2003 2004
000 (W0
Fair valuz, April | T2HT72 53,379
Imreuse in fair valus (MNote 3(z)) 12 4 14 453
Fair walse, WMarch 31 RS, 2RI T2ET2
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8 INVESTMENT SECTTRITTES (Cloni*d)
(e) Euro Bonds

The investment in Euro Bonds of US$3,03 1,015 (2004:US$2.873.000) at an interest
rate of 10L625% per annum matures in 2017/18.

2005 20004

£ 000 L7000
Fair value, April 1 173,777 =
Purchased during the year - 135,013
Increaze (decrease) in fair value (Note 8{2)) 11,174 i E73)
Unrealised foreipn exchange saims 1040 39 857
Fair value, March 31 [ #5901 173,777

(N Quoted equity investments
The movemenl during the year is as [ollows:

20035 2004

57000 000
Purchased during the vear 154,062 -
Increase in fair value (Note 8{z)) 762 -
Fair valuz, March 31 154,824 =

(g)  Increase (decrease) in fair values — Available-for-sale investments

20H15 20104
000 7000
Lifz of Jamaica umiversal imvestor policy {Note 8(d)) 12,404 149,493
Evre Bonds (Mote Bie)) 11,174 { &73)
Cruoted eguities (Mote B{1)) 762 -
Imcrease in fair valee included in fair value
amd other reserves (Mote 17) 24,345 18,0620
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9 INVENTORIES

2005 2004

000 000
Land held for housing development 3793435 405,248
Howsing under conslruction 214,190 1,304,263

Housing units completed bat not allecated

Tovtal value of unity ko R 741,868
lnner City Housing Project (Mote Ha)) 337 328 68 168
2,520,534 2,519,547
Less:  Provision for lesses and subsidies (686,283 L 413,933)

LB¥MIS 210550

The movement in the provision is as follows:

2005 I

S000 0
Balance, April | 413,953 385,469
Provisions during the vear 272310 135,434
Wrile-0fTfs during the year - {1 O 2541}
Balance, March 31 286283 413953

ia) Inner Cily Housing Prigect

The primary aim of the Inner City Housing Projeet (ICHP) is (0 tmnsform “inner cify
areas into attractive and sustainable neighbourhoods through a combination of new
housing and the refurbishment of cxisting housing stock.™

In 2004, the Trust committed $7.5 billion for expenditure on the project in Kingston,
S Catherine, 51 Mary and Wesimoreland,  The estimated project cost includes (he
following:

- The construetion of 5,000 housing solutions at a eost of $5 billion.

- The provision of supporiing social and physical nfrasitecture for new and
existing communities at a cost of $2 hillion.

- The refurbishment and vpgrading of cxisting inner city communitics at 8 cost
ol S50 milliom.
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y INVENTORIES (Cont'd)
ia) Inner City Housing Project (Cont’d)
The project 15 expeeled Lo run over the period 2004 1o 2008,

The ameunis spenl on relurbishing works will be bome by the Trusl, As al March 31,
2005, $200 million has been spent on refurbishing several schemes and this amount as
will a5 other subsidics to the project are reflected in the Income and Expenditure
account, as Subsidies — Special Projects (Note 21).

The ICHP is being undertaken as a distinet and separate, though complementary
project, under the broader Urban Fenewal Programme.

The Trust is the financier of the project and has overall responsibility for planning,
projee] manadgement and admimsiralion.

The new solutions to be provided under the ICHP will primarily be in the fomm of two
and three bedroom apartments.  The units are to be sold by the Trust to qualified
borrowers and it is cxpected that the Trust will provide a substantial subsidy and
recoup the balance ol the invesimeni through the granting ol morlgages,

10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

7000

Cuoml

Balance. April 1 400,825

Additions L0270

Balance, March 31 51.085
Amortisation

Balunce, April | a.05]

Charge tor the vear 13,249

Ralance, March 31 14, 540
Currying amuni:

March 31, 20035 1], 745

March 31, 2HM .77
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110

11

INTANGIRLE ASSETS (Cond*d])

This consists primarily of software purchased and developed, the costs of which are

being amorlised over three years,

INVESTMENT IMN ASSOCIATE
200p3
2000

Shares at cost 490
Advanees 684556

685046

Details of the associate as at March 31, 2005 are as follows:

Plage of Proportion
) Incorporation  Proporion of ol voling
Mame ol assuciale and operalion uwnership power held

Tarmonisation
1. imiicd lamaica A4 50 A4 3%,

RETIREMENT BENEFIT ASSET

2004
000

277003
277073

Principal Aclivily

Land investment
and development

The Trust operates a defined benefit pension plan. The plan is funded by contributions
rom the cmplovees and the Trust. The cmplovees contribute atl 8 rate of 5% of annual
pensionable salaries (with the option of increasing this amount by an additional 3%) with the
Trust contributing the balance of the cost at rates detcrmincd periedically by independent
acluaries,  Pensiom benelils are delermined on o presenbed busis and are payable al a rale of
1.67% of the employee’s average earnings over the three years prior to retirement from the fund
limes (he mumber of years ol pensionable service.  No other post emplovment benelils are

provided.

‘The disclosures below are based on the independent actuarial valuation as at March 31,

2005.
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12 EETIREMENT BEMEFIT ASSET (Cont'd)

(a) Amounds recognieed 1n income o respet of the defined benelit plan are as [ollows;

2003

000
Currenl service cosl 19, 804
Interest cnst 30, T
Expected returm vn assels [ B 104
Net actuarial gain reeagnized in income (2,50}
Change i unrecopnized assed doe w limitation in

Paragraph 38, [A% 19 -

Toslal imcluded in stall costs (19, 1040
Actozal redurm on plan msels 180 200

2004
000
J.600

13,100
( 59,793

{_49.%32)
(62,925}
161,093

(b} Amovnds ineluded in the balanes sheel in respeet of the delined benelitl plan arc as

ool lovwrs:

Present valug of abligation
Fair value of plan assels

Unrecognised actuarial gains

Med asset n balance sheet

2115
000

[3135,3M)

B4, 600

(186,501

201 500

(ch Movements in the net asset during the year were as follows:

Bulamce, April |
Amounrs ¢redited 1o ineome
Camirihulions

Balance, March 31
(dy Ky assumplions used

Ciross discount rale

Fxpected relum on assels
Expeeted rate of salary incroases
Future pension increases

2005
0

136,500
19,100
46,300

201,900

20015

12.5%
[ 1.0%%
1005

A.0Fn
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2O
70040
{117,004
668,500
(115D

154, 500

2004
$IHHI

31975
29235
41 600

20h04

12.5%
12.5%
1410

A
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NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIFMENT (Coni “d)

Crertain [reehold land and boildings were revalped m 1993 and 1994 and (he revaluaiion
surplus of 3208 208 million was credited to fair value and other reserves. The revalued amounts
ol 5593 million for land and 5180308 million lor buildings have been designated the deemied
cost of these assets, as permitted under [FRS 1.

Included in the cost of property, plant and equipment are the following in respect of
Emancipalion Park;

2005 20

000 F000
Buildings/Related infrastructure 202,536 202,530
Furniture, fixtures and ofTice cquipment 7.0 .37
Artwork 13471 10,444
2235 09E 219 544

The Emancipaiion Purk is a public park manuged and muintained by the Trost. The Trosi
intends to transfer the maintenance and management of the park to the Emancipation Park Trust.

Depreciation amounting to $3.703 million (2004: $20.088 million) was charged to
various prijects included under inveniory,

14 ACCOLNTS PAYABLE AND ACCHUALS

2005 2004

7000 LRI

Avcounts payahlc I3 IET FHU 224
Scheme deposiis 95.731 260526
Statutory and other payroll deductions L0175 22 393
Accruals and oiher pavables |74 897 1949 (003
703,190 371,146

These comprise amounts oulstanding for purchases and other on-going operational costs.
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15

BEFUNDARLE CONTEIBRUTIONS

(a)

Contributions refundable
Bonus scerued (Nole 1 5B))

Represenled by:
8% Savings Accounts

Principal

3% Time Accounts

Interest

Principal

Intepest

Teral lor which persenal accounis
arc cstablished

Balances for which me personal
accounts arc established

Tl refunduble employece

(b)

contribution

2005 204

Currently ue Mot Yet Due Tista Tostaal

R ILI] 000 T 0 51000
4,085,437 18,365, 895 22,452,332 19,934,172
57922 2072 205 2650 425 | 900675
4,665,657 20,438,100 25.103,757 21,834,847
( 753293) = { T33293) 31237
34,247 . 38,247 35,339
{715 04b) - { T15.046) ﬁiﬁ?ﬁ
= 225094 225 004 5352014
= 32,100 32,100 B3.167
- 255,194 255,194 G118 381
{ T15,0H6) 255,194 [ 459.852) 684,957
380,703 20,182 90 25,503,600 21,149 890
4,663,657 20,438,100 25,103,757 21834847

Bonuses are payable w contributors at the mate specificd by the Minister of Government
responsible for the Trust. The amount payable to employers (Note 2{¢)) is payable on a
current basis whercas that pavable to cmplovees for cach vear will be paid together with
the cash grant benefits awarded as described in Note 2(b)(ii). Bonuses have been
calculated at 3% per annum for the first seven vears and 8% per annum thereaficr,
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15

16

BEFUNDABLE CONTRIBLTIONS (Cont'd)

{e)  The primary reasons for the backlog in establishing personal accounts arc

1) the non-submission of annual returns by cmplovers.
i} where annual returns have been submitted, in many instances these returns are
incomplete, with & resultant difficulty in reconciling these retums and creating the
appropriate personal accounts by interface with the computerized contributions

systcm.

The Trust 15 considering a number of stratepics to address this problem. which, when
implemented, will result in the reduction of the backlog in establishing personal accounis,

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognized by the Trust and movements thereon:

Acecelened
capitul
allowances
F 000
Chiarged (o income [or
1he year 2003/04
(Miote 23) £420
Charged to accumuolated
fund during the year
200304 (P 17 -
Balance, April 1, 2004 420
Charged to mcome tor
the year (Mote 23) 1Lal5
Credited 10 accumulated
[und during the year
(Mode 17) -
Falance, March 31, 2005 10,035

Revaluation Unrealized
of property,  Retiremenl [ureizn
plunt and bemetit exchange Inlerest {Mher
eguipment asset {rains receivahle Assets Total
R0 SO0 SO0 F00 000 000
- 45,500 21,737 551,169 3,717 630,543
4447 - = = = 4) 447
41,447 45500 21,737 351,169 3717 671, 95K
21,800 {7014)  6R122 1,143 84,766
(L011) : . 2 : (1011}
40,436 67,300 13,823 19291 4860 735,745
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17 FAIR VALUE AND OTHER RESERVES

Unsallocated
Commiburions

B eserves
&0

Bolmmece, March 31, 203 T23.524
Mt imcrense moGir value
il avvai lable-Lwr-sile
Lk Lonnis [ Mote (g -
Realised on digposal
write-pff of available-for-
sale imvestmients
Mefermed tax arisingr on
revitlmalion o properly,
plant and equipimenl

(Mote 14}
IHalamoe, Sarch 31, M4 Tih514

Ml isercass i Cai value
of available-for-salc
imvestments (Mate 8o

Meferred tix qrising on
revarlmaliom | properly,
ant wnd eguipmenl
{Mole (&)

Milamee, March 31, 203 723,524

18 FPERIL RESERVE

Since the 2003-2004 policy wear, the Trst increased its policy deductible to TIS513
milliom, e, perl insurance claims up to this amount will be for the account of the Trust (claims
over this amonnt will be for the acconnt of the insurer) (Notes 24 () and 23

19 LOAN LO55 RESERVE

This rcserve represents the cxcess of the provision for loan losses determined nsing
management's pradential cstimate of 3% of the total momtygage loans reecivahle over the amounts

determined under IFRS {Note &),
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Propertics
Revnluation

Beserves
LA

208,208

[ 41,447
166, 7R1

1Lon
167,772

Iorrestmicnt
Revaluation

Beserves
LA

(14,478

T, Bl

14,478

TH, 620

24,345

42,965

Tikal
LA

017254

18,620

14,478

[ 41.447)
Ll IS

24,145

1Lorl
W4, 261



NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST
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) MISCELTANEOUS INCOME

This comprises:

2005 M4

7000 7000
Foreign exchange mains (net) 13,257 ®1.004
Penalty income 72,504 i, 820
12ebt management foes 25429 45803
Peril and life insurance administrative fees 114,777 131,768
(her 64410 8313

200 817 5708
21 SPECIAL SUBSIDIES AND GRANTS

The analysis of special subsidics and grants provided is as follows;

2015 2104
F000 000
Special projocts
Relucation 2000 175598 2300634
Inner City Housing Project 33T ET 158497
Conamcipution Park 45 118 31.423
Girants
Contribution e O0Mice of Natiwmnal
Reconstruction i See note below) 204, (W
53,5490 A4k 554

O the tlotal conteibution of 5400 mullion in respect of e Ollcs of Natwnal
Reconstruction provided abowve, £347 688 million has been advanced al year end.
These comiribitions were made in relation o restoration works after the passage of
Hurricanc Ivan in Scpremiber 2004,

22 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

The balanee compriscs:

2005 2004

000 S0
Restruciurmyg expenses (MNote 22{a)) 48525 1215
25t Anniversary eclebration oxpenscs - 1097

48,325 2312

(a) The amount represcnts redundancy costs resulting from the restructuring of the
oreanisalion,
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23 TAXATHNMN
As disclosed in MNote 1, by way ol the Public Pnlerprises (Remowval ol Tax
Concessions) Act: 2002, dated December 22, 2003, the Trust’s operations became subject
Iy Imgome l:ax.,

Income tax is caloulated al 33%% ol the estimated asscssable surplus,

The total charge for the year compriscs:

2005 2RI
57000 570040
Cnrrent tax ELANEL 2470, "
Dielerred tax adjustinent {Mole [&) 34 Tob B30543

R4676 811343

The charge lor the vear can be reconeiled o the surplus before taxation in the
income and expendilure account a8 (vl T 52

20035 2004
000 H K0
Surplus belore lxation 258 108 3,534 342
Tax at current tax rate of 33%% 219,364 1178114
Tax effeet of surplus not taxable based
A1 Privr exisling resime - [ T62017)
Tax effect of amounts not deductible in determining
taxahle surpluses al LRI 46,923
Tax ellect ol amuunts deductible e Lax
purpase anly { 691.272) [ GZ0.360)
Inerease in delerred tax hability ¥4, 766 63,543
Roumding 3 44
Taxation expense 24676 B71343

Irv asdddition e the amounl charged o the Tncome and Pxperdilune sccount, delerred
tax relating to the revaluation of the Trust’s property. plant and equipment amounting to
approximelely 1,00 100 has been credited divecily 1o accumulated Dmd (See Nole 17).
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24 NET SURPLUS

ia) The net surplus is stated after taking account of the following items:
2005 2004
5000 S 000
ircctors” cmoluments:
Mon Execulive Direclors — lees 1013 a4
Managcment
DBasic 6,503 0,716
Retroactive payments z (1)
Grafuily m hew of pension and incentive
payments 2,603 2445
Awdil [ees - currenl vear T.a75 8. 100
- prior ycar { 150% -
Depreciation 105,462 69,740
Amartisation/writc-oft of intangible assct 13,249 86,194
Realised loss on disposal of available-for-sale
investment - 14,474

(b}  Operating expenses includes an amount of $265.113 million (2004: $11.755
million), relating primarily to post Hurricane Ivan peril claims (Note 18).

25 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(a) Commitments

2005 2004
7000 0
Commitments contracted for -
Financing houss construction and
acguisition ol howses Tor allocatin 1o beneliciaries 8.615.7a0 Q.69 617
Purchase of land 473,422 -
Inner Cily Towsing Propecl 2,780 483 -
Loans and/or mortgage financing 1,214,000 -

131085665 0.696.617

Authorized and approved but not contracted for -

Furchase of land - 204,57
Loans and/or mortgage financing - 400,000
Imner City Howsing Project 3,901,801 T, 300,040
Mewtown development project 73,000 -

Foweation fund contribution 3,000,000 -

Community projects 253,900 -

Computer software development (LSS247_500) - 15,0F1%
Waste water project (US54, 800,000 292,800 292,300
{ar park - SO, TH
Office returbishing = 85,660

9295 541 £ EI8,555

78



NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

23

26

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Cont*d)

(b}

Conlingencies

The Trust has inereased the level ol s policy deduchible on 1ls penl insurance cover o
US%15 million (1$920.441 million). Should a catastrophic event occur such as a hurricane
or an earthquake, the Trust will be hable o meel the cost ol damages up o the agpregale
amounts of the deductible with the balance borne by the insurer (MNote 18).

RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk. also referred to as funding risk, is the risk that the Trust will encounter
dilliculty i rsing [umds o0 mesl commilments associaled with linancial nsirumenis,
Prudent liquidity risk management implics maintaining sufficient cash and cash
equivalents, and the availability of lunding through an adeguate amounl ol commilled
facilities.

The following table analyses assets and liabilities of the Trust into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period, al balance sheel dale, o the contraciwal matunly
date.

As at March 31, 2IM5: Mo
Within 12 Tin s [ hwer Specific
Misntha Yars 3 Years Matierity [kl
a0 0l F00) S0} S0}
Assets
Cash and cash equivalenis 5332820 - - - 5,332,426
Interest and other receivables 20T A9 W3 - - 2170448
Income fax recoverahle 444733 . - - 494973
Investment securitics &A5%.513 T368.1100 (T 20,103 1T35621%
Toans receivahle 32,303 34K 4T 43 545 T = 44 126,573
Inventories - - - 1.&34.251 L&3.231
Oiher g & = TS 2T TS 2Tk
Total asscis 15953070 N7 492 14635, 2K 4T 6DH TLETLATIN
Liabilities and Accumulated
Funal
Aceounts payable and accruals THE. 140 - - - TiE, 190
Refindable coniribuoiions 4,665,557 11,642,756 H.795, 344 = 25,103,757
Cither liabilities [ - - - [
Dieferred facation = E - 735,745 TA5, 45
Accumulated fund - - - 16310716 16310716
Total labilities and
accumulated fund EoakA0w 162,750 KTYE L4 AT 6461 TLETLATIN

Net Liquidity Gap L0SR16) (hA3S2et)  JSE300F (LLORERES) -
Cumulative Liguidity Gap 2NN L8807 AL88E0 2 =
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NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

26 RISK MANAGEMENT {(Conit*d)
{a)  Liguidity risk (Cont’d)

As at Mlarch 31, 2004:

Assels
Cash and cash eguevalents
Inrerest and oeher receivahles
Income tax recoveruble
Tvesnment securities
Loans meceiviable
Tventorics
Other

Total issets

Liabilifies anid Accunmlated
Fund
Agcounts payable and acenals
Refundable contributions
Oither liabilities
Deferred taxation
Accumulated fund

Total liakilitics and
accummulisted lund

Mt Tigpuidity Coap
Cumulative Liquidity GGap

b} Interest rate risk

M
Within 12 It 5 Ower Specific
Sl s ¥ ery 3 ¥Yeary Mierily [
£000 £'000 57 OH 000 00
1,581,139 - - - 4581139
1, TR RET e, 13 - 1,ETLH2I
32434 - - - 32 A54
5,70 411 5,442 550} 2165403 TLET2 13,362,234
Al 163 205,441 A0 AT B - 40683473
- . 2105 50l 2,105,594
- - - | 310,208 310293
|2 45 300 5734 170 42 603 232 3A8E oL 4. 325993
LERE - - - BT1,144
LIET519 87400014 BOOT.314 - 2LEHLBAT
4,445 - . - 4,445
- - - &7 1, 67 1)
EUA T 40,945 567
2063110 Br4n0]4 BO07.314 41615537 4,325 995
T 436680 13,005 544} ILOEEYIE (38126, TYTE) -
_LiiG.69 AASLESS AR 1260, THE = =

Interest rate risk is the potential that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due
o changes in markel inleresl ales,

The Trusl's exposure o sigmilicanl milerest rale nsks 1s Imiled lor the messon thal the

primary funding of the Trust are contributions which are either non-refundable or

relundable a1 neminal rales ol inlerest. These [umds (ozether with surpluses on eperalions

are the main source of investments in securities, loans to beneficiaries and inventory

houwsing projecis, Such invesiments gre al sigmlicantly higher rates of relum. The ables

helow summarise the interest rate gap based on the earlier of the contractual repricing or

malurily dales,
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26 RISK MANAGEMENT (Conit)
) Intcrest rate risk (Cont™d)

As at March 31, 2005:

Anwels
{axh amil cash sqwivalends
Irteret jmul adher recsivihles
Income tax recoveratde
Inrestmcnt sceurifics
Loans reecivable
liyventarics
Cribc
Total asscts

Liabllides and accumulated fund
Awcounts payable and aceruals
BeTumdable comtnbulions
[ibser liwhililies

[elermed axalion
Aol Fumd

Tatal liakilities and
nepymigluted fimd

Mt Interest Rute Sensitivity Cup

Cumulutive Cap

Within 12 L3 Ower Mon- ratc
Montls ¥ cars 5 Years Sensilive Tolal
LIHEp S50 L0 200} 00
A0 = . EVN TR R
- - E 1700448 2,170,484
g b - LT A 33
11,258,721 4 580,102 1,362 572 154 574 17,356,219
32,303 F4E 224 43 545,791 - 44 126,523
- - - 1,834,251 1,834,251
200327 203,270
16,566, 0&7 5,218 551 41,808,361 6,250,189 TEETIAT
T3, 120 TO3, 154}
4 565,687 | 1,642 756 .75 344 = 25, 103,757
= = g Ha na
= s 2 55,145 V53,4
= - g A HLTIR 4 A HL TG
A G0, i5 T 11,642 756 1795, 344 47,768,713 TERTIATI
(R B { 0,314,325 B BRI (41,515,774 =
(RETEIIEE] 5, ML, 2 41,509,004 5 .
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NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

26 RISK MANAGEMENT {Cont'd)
i Interast rate risk (Cont’d)

Ax at March 31, 204:

Assets
Cash sl cash sguivalents
Interest and ofher reccivahles
Incume lax receverable
Invcstment accuritics
Lanims receivishle
Inveniorica
Other

Tatal assets

Liahilities and accummulated fomd
Aacoumls payable and aceroals
Refundable conmibutions
Other liabilities
Dicfierred taxation
Accumukated fund

Total liahilitics and
aceumulaied fund

Nei Tnterest Raie Sensitivity Gap

Cumulative {zap

Within 12 L5 Over Mot rale
Months Ycars 5 ¥ears Scnaitive Tintal
000 000 £ 000 £1000 L000
4548 770 - - 32367 4 581139
- - 1LETERZ] LETILRZ]
z = - 102 434 302 434
KA013TH EA42 5RE LIR2ZTS - 13,2200
40,163 205 4461 40,437 840 - 40,683 473
= . - 05,5494 15594
" < = L3079 L3l0 298
15.0MH0.311 3 Akid 41675124 5711516 fd 125,905
- - - 71145 &71.140
A 1875149 LG RRIE ] A B ] 21834847
- - - 4445 4445
- - - BT1.59H) BT1.9%0
. 2 = 40 547 56T 45T ST
4. 187,519 40014 8000304 42491148 (4,325.005
K.R02 TY2 |4, 891.570) T2 TR KD [ o, T TR GF ) =
RS2 TH2 A0NLEDZ I TTGEE = 2
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NATIONAL HOUSING TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

20 RISK MANAGEMENT [(Contd)
(b Interest rate risk (Cont*d)

The [ollowing table surmariess the elfective intersst mle for lnancial instruments of (he

Trusl:
2005
TFRAM TO MATIRITY
Wi lms v
L2 mernihe: Xieap: 3 year: A
B Y o5 Y

AssEls

Cash and cash equivalents 130 - - 120

Irvcbing il scouanlics 155 172 51 15.4

Laxans recenrvalle 74 T4 T4 7.4
Liabilices and accummulated fand

W e lumdable comtrlulions 10 KN} 30 14

200
TFRM TO MATIRITY
TWilhi= I nk Thver
L2 mernih: Xieap: 3 yean: Averape
%3 Yo " %

Assris

Casl and cash squivalents 145 - - 14.5

Lt CALIv: il Acturilies 17.0 174 14.5 166

Laans receivabile x| TA TA 74
Liabilices and accummulated fand

Helundable comribulions 50 b 10 10
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YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

i RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

(e)

(d)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss from default by an obligator. The risk is managed primarily
by reviews ol the naneial slalvs of cach obligaior.

The Trust secks to minimise its risk in the [ollowing ways:

o Invesimenl securilies sre ploced wilth repulable lnancial nstilutions and are usually
collateralised.  Additionally, management limits the amount of investment with any
one nstiluion.

o Monitonng the terms of investments and cosuring that the terms of agrocments are
complied with.

The Trust has & sigmlicant credil risk exposure in respect of lesns 1o benelciarices sod loan
financing for housing construction including those to other financial instinations. This risk,
however, 1s miligaled as the maximem losn (0 a single morlgagor 15 resiricled and o
significant number of montgagors must default before there is a significant impact on the
Trust's operations,  Addilienallv, a sigmlicant poriien of these loans s seeured on hovses
and letters of undertaking from the Ministry of Finance, and the Trust makes provisions to
sulvguand ilsell against credil losses,  The Trusts experience of eredil loss has been low,
(See Motes O and 7).

Forcign curreney risk
The Trust incurs foreign currency risks on transactions that are denominated in currencics
other than the Jamaican dollar, The Trusi’s met [oreign corrency sssels ol the end ol the

year were as follows:

20405 2004
LSE 000 LISE 000

13,280 15,304
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26

27

RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont*d)

()]

(f)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
resull of chanpes in the markel prices, whether those chanpes are caused by
factors specific to the individual security or its issuer or factors affecting all
sccuritics traded in the market. The Trust has no significant exposure to market
risk and the risk is limited to its equity securities valued at approximately %155
million at year end.

Cash flow sk

Cash flow risk is the risk that future cash flows associated with a monetary
financial instrument will fluctuate in amount,.  The Trust manages this nsk
through budgetary measures, ensuring as far as possible, that fluctuations in cash
flows relating to monctary financial asscts and liabilitics arc matched, to mitigate
any significant adverse cash flows.

FAIRE VALUES OF FINANMNCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value

Fair value 1s the amount Tor which an assel could be exchanged, or o liabilily seltled,
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s lenpth transaction. A market price,
where in selive markel (such as g recopniaead stock exchange) exists, 15 the best evidence
of the fair value of a financial instrament.

The MNational 1ousing ‘Trust was established under legislation which was designed, inter
alia. to cxpand the pool of low cost housing by providing loans at intcrest rates lower
than markel. These housing projects and/or loans would be funded by contributions from
employees. at interest rates below market rates. and from contributions by employers
which are non-relundable and non-inlerest bearing,
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27

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Coni*d)
Trair value (Cont™d)

These conditions will not exist in a normal commercial environment, Consequently, the
carmving valucs of certain of the Trust's financial instruments are not comparable with
other commerngial hnancial morigage msiilulions and any such companson would in lacl
be misleading. In these circumstances, the fair values presented in these financial
slglements have, therelore, been presenied using various eslimaiion echnigues based on
market conditions existing at balance sheet date as well as the special circumstances of
the Trust.

The wvalues derived using these techniques are significantly affected by underlying
assumplions concerning both the amounts and timing of future eash flows and the
discount rates used. The following methods and assumptions have been used:

(i) The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, accounts payahle
and olther assels and labililies mauring within twelve months ame assumesd (o
approximate their fair values because of the short-term maturities of these
mstruments.

(1) The fair valucs of available-for-sale inwvestment sccuritics are mcasurcd by
relerence 1o quoled markel prices.  The fmr values ol held-to-matunty
investments are determined by discounting future cash flows using the rates on
similar invesiments al the balance sheel date, The camying values ol held-lo-
mamurity investments are based on their amortized costs (See 27 (iv) below).

(iiiy  The carrying values of loans receivable (after deductions for the provision for
mmpairment), bonos W cmployees not yet due and refundable contributions not vet
due are assumed to approximate their fair values based on the particular
circumstances of the Trust.
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27 FAIR YALUES OF FINAMCLAL INSTEUMENTS (Conil’d)

Fair value {Cont™d)
The lwr values of the Tollowimg dilTersd Fom ther camving values:

{1v)
2005 2004
ligir Curryimgs Vair Camyimp
AL 27000 4000 AL
ek o malurily
invesslinenls 18743 133 1o330, 023 13411049 L3 13500]
28 OTHER DISCLOSURES - EMPLOYEES' COSTS
2 2004
() Mumber of persons employed
by the Trust as at year end:

Permanent staft 542 SHO

Temporury slall 301 256

343 36

sTn 37000
(b) SlalT costs iwcurred dunng Lhe year in respect of these
employees wearne;
Salaries and wapes including statutory

coninbulions Ui 502 423,566
Pengion cosls aod olher sl ez 15%.417% 135, 194
Loodolg 105 T
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The Basic Salary for 51 executives for 12 months ending 31 March 2005 are as follows:

2005 2004
$'000 5'000
Managing Direclor (1) 6,354 6354 [seenotes ] &2)
Senior General Managers (2) From 4,000 [see notes 2 & 4)
To 4,200
General Managers [5) From 2.870 [see notes 3 & 4)
To 5201
Assistant General Managers &
Managers (43 From 1,800 1,680 (see notes 3 & 5)
To 2.814 2,318

Notes

The Manoging Director being o confract officer whose position does not fall under the
company’s pension scheme, receives o gratuity of 25% on his compensalion package
in addifion to the amount specified above.

The amounts shown fer the Managing Director and Senior General Managers exclude
the amounts for the provision of a fully maintained vehicle.

The amounts shown for General Managers and Assistont Generol Managers does nol
include motor vehicle allowances.

These positions came into being on Aprl 1. 2004 hence there are no comparsons avail-
able for the year 2003/4.

The movement in salary between 2004 and 2005 is the result of the reclassification exer-

cise which was approved by the Ministry of Finance in 2003/4 but implemented in
2004/5. and not made retroactive.
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SENIORGENER AL MANAGERS

Vincent George
Corporate Services

Hugh Reid
Finance & Operations

GENERAL MANAGERS

Judith Larmeond-Henry
General Legal Counsel & Company Secrefary

Martin Miller
Finance & Accounting

Donald Moare
Construction & Development

Benedict Ranger
Chief Information Officer

Jeneita Townsend
Human Resources Managemeant

Lanie Oakley-Willlams
Operafions

ASSISTANT GENER AL MANAGERS

Mavurice Anderson
Director, Inner City Housing Project

Sharon Bucknor-Lynch
Kingston & 5t. Andrew Branch

Quinton Masters
PFroject Appraisal & Management

Kalean Mills
Legal Conveyancing

Ray Nixon
Anancial Confrol

Hortense Rose
Corporate Communication

Lorna Walker
Chief Internal Auditor

Morais Wallen
Corporate & Business Strategy

Michael Taylor
Project Management



MANAGERS

Lorna Bernard
Westmaoreland Branch Office

George Brooks
Compliance

Andrew Burke
Information Systems Security

Erica Bumrell
Management Support

Keith Clarke
Interim Financed Projects

Delores Facey-Johnson
Information Technology Projects

Novelelte Forbes
51, James Regional Office

Raymour Francis
Budget

Ransford Hamilton
Property Managament

Cheryl Harris-Walder
Business Analysis

Janet Harlley
51. Catherine Branch Office

Gladstone Johnson
Branch Operation

Allison Levy-Farquharson
Customer Care

Neil Miller
Planning & Research

Harold Minott
Personnel & Industrial Relations

Leighton Palmer
Technical Support

L}ﬂ

Heather Pinnock
Project Management
Inner City Housing Project

Paul Reid
St. Ann Regional Office

Ava-Ann Scoft
Client Services

Joyce Simms- Wilson
Manchester Regional Office

Philbert Solomon
Investrment

Audley Stewart
Loan Administration

Imani Totari-Ama
Social Development
Inner City Housing Project

Errol Thempsan
General Accounts

Judith Thempson
Clarendon Branch Office

Elton Vassell
Confributor Accounts

Winston Weir
Intermal Audit

Wendy-Jo Williams
Social Development

Kareen Willie-Daley
Application Development [Acting)

Suzanne Wynter-Burke
Risk Management
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